
Page 1 of 5 

May 26, 2020 Galena City Council Meeting 

Notice of Meeting by Teleconference 

Due to the essential nature of public meetings in conducting official City business and in line with 

the prohibition of gatherings, the upcoming Tuesday, May 26, 2020 Galena City Council meeting 

will  take place via  teleconference utilizing Zoom Video Communications.  The meeting will  be 

conducted at Zoom meeting https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83039154147  (ID: 830 3915 4147) or 312‐

626‐6799, with the following changes, additional opportunities to participate, and reminders: 

• MEETING START TIME – City Council meeting will start at 6:30 p.m.  

  

• PUBLIC COMMENT – Public Comment will be conducted as usual near the beginning of the 

meeting. To ensure the public will be able to participate the city is providing three ways in 

which the public can submit their comments. 

 

1. TELECONFERENCED — Public  is  invited to participate via Zoom Video Communications, 

meeting  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83039154147    (ID:  830  3915  4147).  When  the 

presiding officer calls for public comments during the meeting, an attendee wishing to 

speak by video and/or audio link will be asked to “raise hand”. 

 

A. If using a PC or Mac: 

 

1. During a meeting, click on the icon labeled "Participants" at the bottom center 

of your PC or Mac screen.  

 

2. At the bottom of the window on the right side of the screen, click the button 

labeled "Raise Hand." Your digital hand is now raised. The meeting presiding 

officer will recognize you to speak for not more than three minutes.  

  

3. After speaking, lower you hand by clicking the same button, now labeled "Lower 

Hand." 

 

B. If using a mobile device:  

 

1. Tap "Raise Hand" at the bottom left corner of the screen. The hand icon will 

turn blue and the text below it will switch to say "Lower Hand" while your hand 

is raised.   

2. The meeting presiding officer will recognize you to speak for not more than 

three minutes.  

3. After speaking, lower you hand by clicking the same button, now labeled "Lower 

Hand." 

Page 1 of 111



Page 2 of 5 

2. E‐MAILED – Public comments can be submitted via email to mmoran.org with the subject 

"Public Comment – May 26, 2020". The City Clerk will read emails received out loud (up to 3 

minutes) into the public record. 

 

3. MAILED – Public comments can be mailed  to  the Galena City Clerk, 101 Green Street, 

Galena,  IL 61036. Please  include "City Council Public Comment" on  the outside of  the 

envelope. Please know that postage delivery time could cause the mailing to arrive after 

the meeting time. 

 

• SOCIAL DISTANCING – Public meetings will be conducted via teleconference/virtually utilizing 

Zoom Video Communications to insure recommended social distancing. Join the meeting at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83039154147  (ID: 830 3915 4147). The public may also participate 

by phone by calling 312‐626‐6799 and entering the meeting ID. 

 

• AGENDA — The meeting agenda follows this page and is posted at www.cityofgalena.org and 

on the exterior of City Hall, 101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois.  

 

• NOTICE – Members of the public participating in the meeting via Zoom will be muted unless 

recognized by the presiding officer to speak. Participants joining the meeting via Zoom agree 

that video and/or audio from their computer or device may be broadcast to other meeting 

participants and may be recorded. By joining the meeting, participants also agree that their 

video feed to the meeting may be disabled by the presiding officer and their audio feed may be 

muted. Members of the public participating via Zoom are encouraged to test their system prior 

to  the meeting  start  time  and  become  familiar with  any  changes  to  the  Zoom operating 

environment that may have been made by Zoom. 

 

• QUESTIONS  —  Questions  about  the  teleconference  meeting  may  be  directed  to  City 

Administrator, Mark Moran at mmoran@cityofgalena.org or 815‐777‐1050. 
 

Page 2 of 111



Page 3 of 5 

 
 

 

City of Galena, Illinois 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

6:30 P.M., TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020 
 

ZOOM TELECONFERENCE MEETING  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83039154147  (ID: 830 3915 4147) 

 

  
ITEM                                                            DESCRIPTION 

 
20C‐0197. 

 
Call to Order by Presiding Officer 

20C‐0198. Roll Call 

20C‐0199. Establishment of Quorum 
20C‐0200. Pledge of Allegiance 
20C‐0201. Reports of Standing Committees 
20C‐0202. Citizens Comments 

 Not to exceed 15 minutes as an agenda item 

 Not more than 3 minutes per speaker 
  

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 

20C‐0203. 
 

Public Hearing on an Application by the James and Linda Sowle Estate to Vacate 
0.11 Acres of the Bridge Street Right‐of‐Way Adjacent to 708 Bostwick Street 

6‐7 

 

LIQUOR COMMISSION 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0204. 

  
Discussion and Possible Action on an Application for a Class A Corporation Liquor 
License by Galena Cellars Inc., DBA Galena Cellars Vineyard and Winery, 111 
North Main Street 

8‐12 

 
20C‐0205. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on an Application for a Corporation Manager 
Liquor License by Galena Cellars Inc., DBA Galena Cellars Vineyard and Winery, 
111 North Main Street, for Angela A. Bruun 

13‐15 

 

Page 3 of 111



Page 4 of 5 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20‐10 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0206. 

 
Approval of the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of May 11, 2020  

16‐19 

 
20C‐0207. 

 
Approval of a Contract with Garage Force for Floor Coating at Public Works 
Building 

20‐22 

 
20C‐0208. 

 
Approval of Application to Landmarks Illinois for a Driehaus Award for the 
Restoration of Grant Park 

23‐59 

 
20C‐0209. 

 
Approval of a Contract with Strand Associates to Prepare a Phosphorus 
Optimization Plan and Feasibility Study for Wastewater Treatment Plant 

60‐66 

 
20C‐0210. 

 
Acceptance of April 2020 Financial Report 

‐‐ 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0188. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action Reconsideration of an Independent Contractor 
Agreement with Karen White for Janitorial Services at the Police Department 

 
67‐75  

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0211. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on an Application by the James and Linda Sowle 
Estate to Vacate 0.11 Acres of the Bridge Street Right‐of‐Way Adjacent to 708 
Bostwick Street 

 
6‐7 

 
20C‐0212. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action Downtown Galena Open Spaces Proposal for 
Outdoor Eating and Drinking at Bars and Restaurants 

 
76‐83 

 
20C‐0213. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Proposal by Catherine Kouzmanoff to Allow 
Open Container Alcoholic Beverages in Downtown Galena 

 
84‐86  

 
20C‐0214. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on a Request from the Galena Area Chamber of 
Commerce to Endorse a Letter to Governor JB Pritzker Regarding Possible 
Modifications to the Restore Illinois Plan 

 
97‐88 

 
20C‐0215. 

 
Discussion and Possible Notice of Award of Contract for the East Side Utility 
Improvement Project 

 
89‐90 

Page 4 of 111



Page 5 of 5 

 

 

CALENDAR INFORMATION  
 
 

BOARD/COMMITTEE  DATE  TIME  PLACE 

Historic Preservation 
Commission 

Cancelled Until 
Further Notice 

     

Zoning Board of Appeals  Wed. June 10  6:30 P.M.  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86526617738?pwd=
N1BSek9mMXhpWnBVQlhDQVQ2RW82dz09 

Meeting ID: 865 2661 7738 

City Council    Mon. June 8  6:30 P.M. https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83492207470 
Meeting ID: 834 9220 7470 

 
 

ITEM  DESCRIPTION  PAGE 
 
20C‐0216. 

 
Discussion and Possible Action on Zoning Cal. No. 20A‐02, a Request for a Zoning 
Map Amendment to Rezone 1249 North Franklin Street from Limited Agriculture 
to General Commercial District to Allow Indoor Commercial Entertainment 
(Restaurant) and In‐Vehicle Sales & Service Land Uses  

 
91‐104 

 
20C‐0217. 

 
Warrants 

 
105‐111 

20C‐0218. Alderpersons’ Comments   
20C‐0219. City Administrator’s Report    
20C‐0220. Mayor’s Report   
20C‐0221.  Motion for Executive Session Including:  

 Section 2 (c) (1) – Employee hiring, firing, compensation, discipline and 
performance 

 Section 2 (c) (2) – Collective negotiating matters and deliberations 
concerning salary schedules 

 Section 2 (c) (21) Review of Executive Session Minutes 

 

20C‐0222.  Adjournment   

Page 5 of 111



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    April 30, 2020 

RE:    Bridge Street Vacation 

Tuesday’s meeting agenda includes a public hearing for an application by Julie Simmons and David 
Sowle, the trustees of the James V. and Linda L. Sowle Estate. The applicants propose to vacate part 
of the Bridge Street right‐of‐way adjacent to their property at 708 Bostwick Street. The area 
proposed for vacation is irregularly shaped and approximately .11 acres. Our staff has reviewed the 
request and reached the following conclusions: 
 

1. Part of the applicant’s home encroaches on the subject right‐of‐way. The proposed vacation 
would resolve the encroachment.  

 
2. The applicant has maintained the property as a backyard for many years. 

  
3. If the proposed area of Bridge Street were vacated, Bridge Street would still have a linear 

right‐of‐way of approximately 60 feet in width.    
 

4. The area proposed for vacation in not improved for public purposes and not scheduled to 
be improved in the future.  

 
While the applicant requests the vacation be approved at no cost, our street vacation policy 
requires a certified appraisal of the property at the expense of the applicant to determine the fair 
market value. As an alternative, for recent vacations you have assigned a value of $1.10 per square 
foot (based on a 2014 appraisal). At $1.10 per square foot, the land would be valued at 
approximately $5,270.  
 
If the council is agreeable to vacating the subject right‐of‐way, an ordinance would need to be 
prepared and approved. Since the proposed vacation is not an existing parcel of record, the new 
parcel would need to be platted and legally described. This would typically be completed by a 
licensed surveyor at the expense of the applicant.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  Thank you. 

 

 

Page 6 of 111



0
10

20
30

40
50

Fe
et

Exhibit APage 7 of 111

mmoran
Typewritten Text
Proposed Area of Vacation

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text
Bridge Street

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text
Bostwick Street

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text

mmoran
Typewritten Text



Page 8 of 111



Page 9 of 111



Page 10 of 111



Page 11 of 111



Page 12 of 111



Page 13 of 111



Page 14 of 111



Page 15 of 111



Regular Board Meeting  11 May 2020 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 11 MAY 2020 
 

20C-0177 – CALL TO ORDER 
  
Mayor Renner called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Board Chambers at 101 
Green Street on 11 May 2020.  
 
20C-0178 – ROLL CALL 
 
Upon roll call, the following members were present via Zoom teleconference:  Allendorf, 
Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Renner 
 
Absent:  Hahn (Hahn connected at 6:53 p.m. and attended executive session) 
 
20C-0179 – ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 
 
Mayor Renner announced a quorum of Board members present to conduct City business.   
 
20C-0180 – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge was recited.    
 
20C-0181 - REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
 
No reports.   
 
20C-0182 – CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
None.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA CA20-09 
 
20C-0183 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF 
APRIL 27, 2020 
 
20C-0184 – APPROVAL TO CONDUCT ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS AND HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION COMMISSION MEETINGS AS NEEDED USING ZOOM 
TELECONFERENCING 
 
20C-0185 – APPROVAL OF BUDGET AMENDMENT BA21-01 FOR RECEIPT OF REBUILD 
ILLINOIS GRANT FUNDS 
 
20C-0186 – APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER #4 FOR THE DOWNTOWN SIDEWALK 
RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
 
20C-0187 – APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT FOR TRANSIT SERVICE WITH JO DAVIESS 
COUNTY TRANSIT FOR MAY 1, 2020 TO APRIL 30, 2021 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to approve Consent Agenda, CA20-08.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
       

The motion carried.  

Page 16 of 111



Regular Board Meeting  11 May 2020 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
20C-0188 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
AGREEMENT WITH KAREN WHITE FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES AT THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 
 
Motion:   Bernstein moved, seconded by McCoy, to approve an independent contractor 
agreement with Karen White for janitorial services at the Police Department.   
 
Discussion:  Mayor Renner stated the city has decided to outsource the janitorial services rather 
than using city staff.    
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
         

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0189 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE 2020 SWIMMING POOL 
SEASON 
 
Motion:  McCoy moved, seconded by Bernstein to move the opening of the swimming pool to 
2021.    
 
Discussion:  McCoy noted we would have to get to Phase 5 of the reopening in order to be able 
to open the pool.  The logistics of that are very difficult.  He voiced concern if the pool were to 
open it would be very difficult to control social distancing.  With the risk factors and expenses 
involved, he feels it isn’t going to happen this year.   
 
Kieffer agreed stating he doesn’t think it is feasible to spend $10-$12,000 to open for a month.  
He was in favor of waiting till next season.   
 
Allendorf stated while he would love to see the pool open, he doesn’t feel the city should put 
people’s safety in jeopardy.  Renner agreed.   
 
McCoy thanked Mark Moran and staff for the unbelievable evaluation of the situation.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Renner  
  NAYS:  None  
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
         

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0190 – DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON PAY APPLICATION #7 AS A 
SPECIAL ACCOUNT WARRANT TO LOUIE’S TRENCHING SERVICE FOR THE DOWNTOWN 
SIDEWALK RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 
 
Motion:  Kieffer moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve pay application 7 as a special account 
warrant to Louie’s Trenching Service for the downtown sidewalk reconstruction project in the 
amount of $93,861.81, 20C-0190.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 

Page 17 of 111



Regular Board Meeting  11 May 2020 
 

         
The motion carried.  

 
20C-0191 – WARRANTS 
 
Motion: McCoy moved, seconded by Allendorf, to approve the Warrants as presented, 20C-
0191.   
 
Discussion:  None.   
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Kieffer, McCoy, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
       

The motion carried.  
 
20C-0192 – ALDERPERSONS’ COMMENTS 
 
Local Businesses – Allendorf thanked Mark Moran and Chief Huntington for the information to 
businesses downtown.  They did a nice job stating the current situation.  Allendorf hopes we can 
do what we can within the guidelines to drive a little more business to downtown.  He would like 
to see information on that.  He understands the businesses are badly off.  He hopes the city can 
come up with a plan to help businesses, as the state is failing us pretty bad right now.   
 
Thank you – McCoy thanked everyone for the petition and emails.  He does sympathize with the 
businesses.  He agrees we do need to open Galena, but we need to do it as safe as possible.  
We still need to be ahead of the curve, and we want to be known as a safe tourist destination.   
 
20C-0193 – CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
 
Grant – We have been notified by IDOT that we will receive a grant for capital projects such as 
roads and bridges.  The grant will be distributed in 2 disbursements each year for 3 years.  We 
will receive $75,000 per year for a total of $225,000 over 3 years.   
 
Downtown Sidewalks – The downtown sidewalk and crosswalk replacement in the downtown is 
complete.  The City received a $372,000 grant for the sidewalk and crosswalk replacement.  The 
majority of the work was completed last spring.  The final 9 crosswalks were finished last week.   
 
Rec Park – The construction of parking at Rec Park has restarted.  They will be adding 36 new 
parking spaces.  Most of the curb and gutter is now installed and the asphalt paving will be done 
in about three weeks.  This is a $52,000 project, of which $50,000 is grant funded.   
 
Advocacy/IML – IML has sent a letter to the Governor asking to divide the sate into the original 
11 EMS regions instead of the 5 that are part of the Restore IL plan.  This would shrink our region 
in half.  They are also requesting to revise the timeline for assessing stability in a region from 28 
days to 14 days.  This would effectively provide a region the chance of advancing to the next 
phase of reopening in half the time.   
 
Illinois Restaurant Association – The Illinois Restaurant Association is advocating to allow 
restaurants to open earlier, in Phase 3 instead of Phase 4.  Staff is working through Galena 
Country Tourism to communicate the potential importance of outdoor dining in Galena for 
restoring our economy and, making sure the rules for reopening restaurants allow for outdoor 
dining with proper safeguards.   
 
Reopening Local Economy – Under the Governor’s Restore Illinois Plan, there will be a 
possibility of all retail opening on May 29.  The GDBA will be holding a teleconference tomorrow 

Page 18 of 111



Regular Board Meeting  11 May 2020 
 

morning where they will discuss reopening considerations, marketing and the outlook for events 
through  
 
20C-0194 – MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Renner thanked Mark Moran and staff for the prepared information for the downtown 
businesses.  He appreciated the good news about the grant.   
 
20C-0195 – MOTION FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion:   Allendorf moved, seconded by Westemeier, to recess to Executive Session to discuss 
the following: 
  

 Employee hiring, firing, compensation, discipline and performance, Section 2 (c) (1) 
 Collective negotiating matters and deliberations concerning salary schedules, Section 2 (c) 

(2) 
 Review of Executive Session Minutes, Section 2 (c) (21) 

 
Discussion:  None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  Kieffer, McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
  ABSENT:  Hahn 
       

The motion carried.  
 
The meeting recessed at 6:53 p.m. 
 
The meeting reconvened at 7:16 p.m. 
 
20C-0196 – ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Hahn moved, seconded by Allendorf, to adjourn.   
 
Discussion:   None. 
 
Roll Call:  AYES:  McCoy, Westemeier, Allendorf, Bernstein, Hahn, Kieffer, Renner 
  NAYS:  None 
       

The motion carried.  
   
The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Mary Beth Hyde 
City Clerk 
 
 

Page 19 of 111



101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050      Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org

Page 20 of 111



Page 21 of 111



Page 22 of 111



Landmarks Illinois – 2020 Richard H. Driehaus Foundation Preservation Award 
Nomination for Restoration of Grant Park in Galena Illinois – Date: May 25, 2020 

Project – Grant Park 

Project Address – Grant Park, 625 Park Avenue, Galena IL 61036 

Owner – City of Galena 

Owner Address –  Terry Renner, Mayor 
   Mark Moran, City Administrator 
   City of Galena 
   101 Green Street, P.O. Box 310 
   Galena IL 61036 

   Website:  www.citofgalena.org

Owner Phone Number – 815-777-1050 

Owner Email – mmoran@cityofgalena.org

Nominator –  Ken Robb, President 
   The Galena Foundation 
   P.O. Box 1 
   Galena IL 61036 

   Phone –  815-281-1089 
   Email –   robbhome@att.net
   Website – www.galenafoundation.org

Award Category – Preservation/Restoration 

List of Principals Responsible for the Project – Grant Park Committee: 
 Charles Marsden, Chairman 
 David Greibe 
 Karen Greiner 
 Joel Holland 
 Paul Jackson 
 Libby Miller 
 Mark Moran 
 Ken Robb 
 Pat Smith 

Landscape Architect – David Greibe 
Arborist – Jon Kelly 
Artist/Sculptor – Charles Fach 
Contractors – Cory and Jeremy White, Earl Thompson, Dan Cole, Redfern Nursery, 
Ben Wienen, Louie’s Trenching, Hahn Quarry, Galena Masonry, Vincent Monuments 

Page 23 of 111



Page 2 – Driehaus Award 

Project Start Date – March 2017 

Project Completion Date – August 2019 

Questions and additional information about the project: 

1.  Is the project (place) recognized for its significance? 

Yes.

Grant Park is on the National Register of Historic Places, one of more than 800 
properties in the Galena Historic District, added to NRHP on October 18,1969.  
NRHP Reference Number 69000056. 

2.  Did this project take advantage of any grants or other funding? 

Yes.

A broadly based fundraising campaign began in 2017, which resulted in securing 
over $232,000 in donations from more than 150 individuals, local community 
organizations, and businesses in the Galena area.   

A fundraising letter (attached) was sent in September to potential contributors, and 
subsequently followed up with personal appeals to individuals.  Extensive publicity 
and newspaper articles (attached) reported the progress of the restoration.  Open 
meetings of the Grant Park Committee encouraged community input.  Presentations 
were made to community groups and service clubs, that resulted in significant 
donations from virtually every group including Kiwanis, Elks, VFW, Lions, Questers, 
Rotary, Fortnightly Club, Eagles, and the Community Development Fund of Galena, 
as well as East Galena Township.  Local contractors made donations of labor and 
materials.  The Galena Foundation and the City of Galena made matching grants. 

Contributors to the project were recognized on bronze plaques placed in the center 
of the Oval Garden at Grant Park. 

3.  Describe the purpose and scope of this project. 

Grant Park occupies a special place in the lives and memories of every resident and 
visitor to Galena, and because of this, the Grant Park Committee, appointed by the 
Mayor, took extraordinary care to be sensitive to each element of the restoration, 
and its effect on those who come to the park, whether for an event, or for a quiet 
walk among the trees. 

Page 24 of 111



Page 3 – Driehaus Award 

Initially, special attention was directed to the landscape of the park.  A complete 
inventory of trees (over 100) was conducted by a certified arborist, providing a 
template for the master plan as to trees that might need to be removed due to 
disease or decay, those that need trimming, and new trees to be planted.  Extra 
care was made to preserve the many mature maples and an exceptional oak tree 
estimated to be nearly 250 years old. 

Every effort was made to return the permanent structures in the park, including the 
Fountain, Gazebo, Pavilion, and Pergola to their original late 1800 or early 1900 
appearance, based on historic photographs from the archives of the U.S. Grant 
State Historic Site.  Repairs and updates to existing infrastructure in the park, i.e. 
electrical, internet access, plumbing, water pumps and drainage were installed to 
facilitate the needs of those who use the park, while ensuring that the historic 
appearance of the park was retained (overview of master plan attached). 

This restoration greatly benefited from the contributions of local artisans and skilled 
professionals, many of who donated their time and talents.  Galena artist and 
sculptor Charles Fach restored the 1891 sculpture in the center of the Fountain.  
Landscape architect David Greibe created designs for the gardens, plant beds and 
park entrances; and supervised their installation with new plantings that reflect the 
historical nature of the landscape.  Two local contractors, Hahn Quarry and Louie’s 
Trenching, donated stone and labor for the Oval Garden (copy of landscape design 
for oval garden attached). 

If those who lived in Galena in the late 1800s and early 1900s were to visit the park 
today, they would easily recognize the park and its landscape.  This restoration was 
one that honored the history and traditions of Grant Park, and will continue to serve 
the needs of the community for many years to come. 

4.  Why is this place important to you? 

The importance of Grant Park is steeped in the history of Galena in the 1800s.  Its 
relevance to the residents of those days is no more nor less than to those who visit 
the park today.  From its inception, Grant Park was created to serve the residents 
and visitors of Galena. 

In 1890, Galena native and benefactor Herman H. Kohlsaat proposed the idea of a 
park for the enjoyment of the citizens of Galena, and as a prominent location for 
the placement of a statue of its most famous citizen, U.S. Grant.  Earlier that year, 
Kohlsaat had commissioned noted Danish sculptor Johannus Gelert to create the 
bronze statue as an enduring monument to the memory of Grant.  Kohlsaat would 
later commission another famous artist, Thomas Nast, to create the painting “Peace 
in Union” depicting the surrender of Robert E. Lee to U.S. Grant at the end of the 
Civil War.  This painting is now exhibited at the Galena and U.S. Grant Museum.   
These artworks are treasured and they are irreplaceable in their value. 

Page 25 of 111



Page 4 – Driehaus Award 

The site selected for Grant Park needed to be cleared of existing houses, and about 
19,000 cubic yards of dirt were moved to create the gradual slopes seen in the park 
today.  Work began in August 1890 and required the labor of more than forty men 
and twenty-four teams of horses.  During construction, workers lived in tents in the 
northeast corner of the park.  By October of the same year their work was 
completed. 

The first structures in the park were installed in 1891 including the U.S. Grant 
Statue and the Ladies’ Auxiliary Fountain.  At the same time, the Soldiers 
Monument was moved to the park from Seminary Hill on the west side of town.  
Later enhancements to the park would include the Gazebo in 1901, the Pavilion in 
1917, and the Pergola in 1921 (archival photographs attached).  

The appearance of the park has changed little over the years, and its historic 
structures and landscape have been preserved through the support of many in the 
community.  In 1993, the James J. O’Bel Trust Fund was established to ensure the 
continued upkeep of the gardens in the park.  Prior to this major restoration, there 
were repairs completed in 2004 to the Fountain, and in 2007 to the Grant Statue 
and the Gazebo (Photos attached). 

5.  How did saving this place impact people in your community? 

Grant Park impacts the people of our community at all ages on many levels, and 
preserving its history and viability ensures it will continue to do so. 

For some, it is the joy of children playing on swings in the playground or sledding 
down one of the hillside slopes in the winter snow.  For others, like tennis players 
on the court in the early 1900s, it is a neighborhood pickup game of basketball in 
the park.  Graduating high school seniors come to the park to have their pictures 
taken by the Fountain.  Young couples dressed for the prom walk across the bridge 
into the park to be announced to admiring parents and friends.  Family reunions 
and picnics are commonplace in the park throughout the spring, summer and fall. 

Grant Park is a favorite site of local residents and out-of-town visitors alike for 
wedding ceremonies, more than twenty to twenty-five each year, held near the 
Fountain, Gazebo, or Pergola. 

Several concerts are scheduled in the park every year, appealing to all musical 
preferences.  Fireworks are shot from the park on July Fourth, and on other 
occasions, much to the enjoyment of everyone. 

The Galena Country Fair, held in Grant Park since 2003, attracts 10,000 to 12,000 
visitors each year on Columbus Day Weekend, with 150 exhibitors showing their 
arts and crafts for purchase.  Revenues from visitor donations and exhibitor fees 
have generated more than $1 million in funding for charities in the Galena area. 

Page 26 of 111



Page 5 – Driehaus Award 

6.  Describe how this project aligns with Landmarks Illinois’ mission People Saving 
Places for People? 

This project, the restoration of Grant Park, had the broad-based support of the 
entire community from the outset.  Those who could contribute their labor and 
talent willingly did so.  Those who could contribute funding generously did so.  
Probably more than 250 people directly contributed to this project in one way or 
another, each playing an important role in the saving of the park for all people.  
Without their support, over time, Grant Park would become less meaningful, its 
gardens neglected, its historic structures less attractive. 

Galena is proud of his history and the beauty of its landscape.  The many historic 
buildings and parks are a source of enjoyment for both residents and visitors.  They 
are also important to the economy of Galena.  More than one million visitors come 
to Galena each year, visiting our community, touring its historic sites, staying in our 
quaint hotels and inns, and dining in our renowned restaurants. 

The restoration of Grant Park is an investment in the future enjoyment of the park 
by the people of today as well as those to come…exactly as Herman H. Kohlsaat 
imagined it in 1890 when he proposed the idea of the park. 

Page 27 of 111



Attachments – Driehaus Award 

Letters of Recommendation (2) 
 Pat Smith 
 Chas Marsden 

Photographs (20) 
 U.S. Grant Statue 
 Gazebo 
 Archival photograph of U.S. Grant Statue and Gazebo 
 Fountain 
 Archival photograph of Fountain 
 Pavilion 
 Archival photograph of picnic at the Pavilion 
 Pergola 
 Oval Garden 
 Archival photograph of Oval Garden 
 Landscape view from bench 
 Country Fair crowds 
 Country Fair arts and crafts exhibits 
 Country Fair shoppers 
 Archival photograph of filming the movie “Gaily, Gaily” 
 Nine Generals at the Soldier’s Monument 
 Archival photograph of U.S. Grant birthday celebration in 1918 
 Luminara in the park at Christmas 
 Wedding Ceremony in the Park 2014 
 Wedding Ceremony in the Park 2018 

Galena Gazette Articles (3) 
 Grant Park Work is Underway 
 The Art of Restoration of the Fountain 
 Finishing Touches on the Oval Garden 

Supporting Information (4) 
 Masterplan for Restoration 
 Landscape Design for Oval Garden 
 Fundraising Letter Page 1 
 Fundraising Letter Page 2 

Page 28 of 111



Page 29 of 111



Page 30 of 111



Page 31 of 111



Page 32 of 111



Page 33 of 111



Page 34 of 111



Page 35 of 111



Page 36 of 111



Page 37 of 111



Page 38 of 111



Page 39 of 111



Page 40 of 111



Page 41 of 111



Page 42 of 111



Page 43 of 111



Page 44 of 111



Page 45 of 111



Page 46 of 111



Page 47 of 111



Page 48 of 111



Page 49 of 111



Page 50 of 111



Page 51 of 111



Page 52 of 111



Page 12A The Gazette, Galena, Illinois, Wednesday, July 5, 2017 

by Hillary Dickerson
hdickerson@galgazette.com

GALENA–The fountain at Grant Park is taking 
center stage after months of restoration work. On 
Wednesday, June 28, Jeremy and Cory White, con-
tractors for the project, turned on the water, stood 
back and marveled at the fountain’s beauty. 

Added to the park in 1891, the fountain was last 
restored in 2004. As part of the ongoing Grant Park 
project, a partnership between the city and Galena 
Foundation, the fountain restoration–including 
caulking, painting, a new pump to improve the spray 
and miscellaneous work–is the latest improvement. 
The project budget was $15,000, with all expenses 
paid by the foundation. The bid from White Con-
struction was for $14,000. 

It’s been quite a project. 
During the winter, the Whites removed the center 

sculpture and four cherubs, as well as the benches 
on the sidewalks surrounding the fountain. While 
the center sculpture is original, Jeremy said, the 
cherubs are all aluminum. No one is certain of the 
date they were replaced, but they appear very similar 
to the originals. 

After inspecting the center sculpture, Jeremy 
found major issues that no one was aware of up to 
that point. He sought the assistance of Galena artist 
Charles Fach to make the repairs. 

Fach, who knew full well what he was getting 
himself into, agreed. All together he spent 40-and-
a-half-hours making a replacement foot and fingers 
and then ensuring the head was securely attached 
to the zinc casting sculpture that was soldered and 
pieced together. 

In the end, Fach charged only $100 for his work, 
an amount included in the original bid; Fach was 
only interested in covering the cost of the materials 
he used in the process. 

Fach said he found the head of the sculpture 
held on by a rotten piece of wood. He went to work, 
logging time each day. He created molds to make 
the melting lead pieces necessary, a multi-step 
process. All the pieces were attached with stainless 
steel screws. 

When Fach was finished, the Whites painted the 
sculpture and put it in place.

“It ought to last a couple hundred years,” said 
Fach of the restored sculpture. 

“We’re extremely fortunate to have (Fach),” said 
Jeremy, noting that the sculpture probably would 
have been taken to Chicago for the repair work if 
Fach hadn’t been able to take on the project. Jeremy 
estimates Fach’s work was worth at least $5,000. 

The work has been significant for Jeremy as 
well. He remembers falling in the fountain as a 
child as he tried to grab the coins that had sunk 
to the bottom. 

“It’s kind of neat for me,” he said, adding that his 
work is less about the money and more about pre-
serving the history. “I love Galena and its history.”

Once the sculpture was in place and painting 
finished, the cherubs were returned. Jeremy said 
the paint is marine grade and will withstand years of 
wear and be easy to clean, minimizing maintenance. 

The fountain now appears as it did in 1891. 
The 10 urns that were on the edge of the foun-
tain, installed in 2004, were removed. Four of the 
urns, painted black, will be placed in the gardens 
around the fountain. Limestone bases for urns were 
donated by Hahn Quarry and Timp Landscaping.

The fountain benches, possibly original, have a 
fresh coat of bronze paint. 

 The other six urns will be placed in other areas 
of the park. 

With the fountain complete, the landscaping 
work around the fountain really stands out as well. 
Ben Wienen Landscaping was contracted for that 
project, as well as other small landscaping projects 
in other areas of the park, at a cost of $13,115, which 
is covered by the Galena Foundation.

Jeremy White worked in early June to remove the paint from the Grant Park fountain. 
White used a recycled charcoal–a process called Black Beauty–to remove the paint. 
The fountain was last restored in 2004. Dan Burke and Hillary Dickerson photos

Grant Park fountain work shows 

This close up of the sculpture at the center of the Grant Park fountain shows the impres-
sive work of Galena artist Charles Fach, who repaired the neck, fingers and foot. Jeremy 
and Cory White, who were contracted to do the work, removed layers of paint from the 
sculpture, which is original to the fountain. The fountain was added to the park in 1891. 

Above, Galena artist Charles Fach spent 41 hours repairing the sculpture 
at the center of the Grant Park fountain. He’s pleased with the finished 
product. Below, Fach in his Galena studio with the molds he made to 
repair the sculpture.

The art of 
restoration

Jeremy White did some touch up painting on the 
fountain on Tuesday, June 27. The water was 
turned back on the following day. 

After months of work, Cory, left, and Jeremy White are pleased with the finished 
Grant Park fountain. The brothers, who own White Construction, took some time 
to enjoy the refurbished piece of history after the water was spraying once again. 
The spray can be adjusted with the new nozzles that were part of the restoration. 

Page 53 of 111



Finishing touches on oval garden
Volunteers, city crew work on focal point of Grant Park restoration project

Volunteer Mike Sostak shoveled some dirt into a wheel barrow as he worked with the city crew and other volunteers to plant the new oval garden at Grant Park on 
Thursday, Sept. 13. There was a flurry of activity at the site last week as finishing touches were added to the project that was made possible by a partnership between 
the city of Galena and the Galena Foundation. Louie’s Trenching did the excavation, sidewalk and wall work, and Galena Masonry built the middle column, which will 
feature four plaques, one with the history of the park and another with details about the current project which leads into a donor list which extends to the other two 
plaques. The $232,000 restoration at Grant Park is funded, with the exception of a $50,000 commitment from the city, by the foundation. The oval garden project 
totaled $85,000. To donate, send contributions to The Galena Foundation, P.O. Box 1, Galena, IL 61036. Hillary Dickerson photos

Landscape architect David Greibe, left, and Jason Bingham, a member 
of the public works crew, moved the urn stand into place.

Above: From left, City Administrator Mark Moran, Mike Sostak and Rusty 
Montgomery, city public works crew, placed one of the urns on its stand. 
Right: David Greibe, the landscape architect who planned the garden, 
positioned the plants where they were to be planted.

Pat Smith, above, and Paul Jackson, below, both mem-
bers of the Grant Park committee, planted flowers.

Page 54 of 111



Grant Park work is underway
City and Galena Foundation partner to make host of improvements to city park

by Hillary Dickerson
hdickerson@galgazette.com

GALENA–Grant Park is getting a make over, 
thanks to the Galena Foundation and the city of 
Galena. 

During the Monday, Feb. 27 Galena City Council 
meeting, the council approved four recommenda-
tions from the newly-formed Grant Park committee. 

For a total cost of $13,500, paid by the Galena 
Foundation, the park’s fountain will be completely 
restored. 

The contract with White Construction includes 
repairing the center figurine, walnut blasting all 
figurines and repainting, sandblasting all surfaces 
of the fountain to remove paint, repairing all cracks, 
painting the fountain, replacing plumbing to the 

figurines to restore the original fan spray pattern 
and installing a filter on the pump. 

The four benches around the fountain will be 
sandblasted and repainted for $500. Full funding 
will be provided by the Galena Foundation. 

The third Galena Foundation project, at a cost of 
$11,500, will be to reconstruct and plant the land-
scape beds surrounding the fountain, remove all 
urns from the fountain (they were not original) and 
use one of the urns in each of the four landscaped 
beds around the fountain.

The city crew, for an estimated cost of $200, will 
remove the plantings in landscape beds that form a 
diamond shape to the west of the fountain, remove 
narrow concrete edging and return the landscape 
beds to grass. 

Other work
In addition to the fountain restoration and 

the gardens around the fountain, the committee, 
meeting Feb. 17, also talked about other projects 
that are in the works. 

Dan Cole and his crew have been working 
throughout the winter on tree removal and prun-
ing at the park. 

Ken Robb, a committee member, reported that 
Cole has made considerable progress. There were 
originally 90 trees in the park, with 21 of those 
trees recommended for removal. Seventeen of the 
trees have been removed, and there are 35 trees 
designated for trimming. 

As with any project, there are funding needs. 
The committee briefly touched upon future plans 

to raise a minimum of $200,000 to help fund the
improvements to the park. 

There was discussion about a campaign that
would allow donors to honor or memorialize loved
ones by donating to specific projects. Plaques would
be placed at the site and the donors would be pub-
licly recognized as well. 

Plans are also underway to assess the current
conditions of the stone Civil War monument and
the Grant statue. 

The White Construction lift will be used to better
assess the condition when the fountain restoration
work is taking place. 

The next Grant Park committee meeting is
scheduled for Friday, March 17 at 10:30 a.m. at
city hall. 

These renderings by David Greibe, a landscape architect, showcase the plans for the Grant Park fountain, above, 
and the oval gardens surrounding the fountain, at right. The Galena Foundation and the city are partnering to 
complete work at the park. Contributed images

Page 55 of 111



10

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8

9

11

1
11

1413
4

9

7 4

5

3

2

8

5

4

12

6

1.  Tree Removal / Trimming
2.  Clean Up Plants Around Fountain
3.  Aerate and Seed Bare Areas
4.  Fountain Repairs and Improvements

5.  Pergola Restoration
6.  Shelter Restoration
7.  Fix Erosion
8.  Sidewalk Repair / Replacement

 9.  Concrete Replacement at Soldiers
      Monument
10. Paint Lampposts, etc.
11. Van Buren Street Clean-Up

Short Term

Long Term

1.  New Main Entrance / Reconstruct
     Elliptical Garden
2.  Reconstruct Fountain Surroundings
3.  Reconstruct Planting Beds
4.  Upgrade Entrances
5.  Accessible Pathway

 6.  Low Maintenance Plantings
      on Embankment
 7.  Remove Sidewalk to Nowhere
 8.  Remove Stairs to Nowhere
 9.  Limestone Terrace Walls
10. Restore Johnson Street Bricks

11. Improve Signage and Wayfinding
12. Major Van Buren Street Improvements
13. New Playground Equipment -
      Kiwanis Club
14. Improve Basketball Courts -
      Neighborhood Group

GRANT PARK PROJECTS

Page 56 of 111



Page 57 of 111



Page 58 of 111



Page 59 of 111



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:     Andy Lewis, City Engineer   
 
DATE:      20 May 2020 
 
RE:      Phosphorus Removal Planning Report 

        Approval of Agreement     
     

 
Earlier this year we received the Illinois EPA National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permit for the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP), which is valid for five years. This 
new permit included additional monitoring requirements, now including the need to conduct 
an optimization plan and feasibility study for removal of phosphorus from the influent. There 
are strict time limits on meeting these obligations. 
 
We were aware of this new requirement and had previously contacted our consultant Strand 
Associates, our designer for the plant who have been involved with other improvements over 
the years, primarily the Supervisory Control and Data System (SCADA). 
 
I attach an agreement from Strand Associates for conducting a phosphorus removal 
optimization plan and feasibility study for a not to exceed sum of $29,500. Unfortunately, this 
item was not included in the budget as we did not have a clear idea what the cost would be. We 
will therefore need to complete a budget amendment for this amount. City staff and our 
manager for US Water have reviewed the proposal and agree the description of the engineering 
services and estimated cost are justified and reasonable. 
 
I recommend the City Council approves the agreement with Strand Associates for $29,500 to 
conduct an optimization plan and feasibility study for phosphorus removal at the wastewater 
treatment plant.  

 

Page 60 of 111



Page 61 of 111



Page 62 of 111



Page 63 of 111



Page 64 of 111



Page 65 of 111



Page 66 of 111



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    May 5, 2020 

RE:    Police Department Janitorial Services   
 

After nearly 29 years of dedicated service, Elaine White is retiring on May 31 as the custodian for 
the Police Department (and City Hall through 2015). Thank you for your service Elaine! 
 
The Police Department is our only facility where janitorial services are provided by an employee of 
the City and not an independent contractor. With Elaine’s departure, I recommend we shift to a 
contractor for standardization and cost savings.  
 
Karen White has assisted her mother with the Police Department janitorial and is willing to continue 
as an independent contractor. The attached contract was developed with the assistance of Chief of 
Police, Lori Huntington, to reflect the current needs of the department. Karen has reviewed the 
contract and is agreeable with the terms.  
 
The proposed contract would run from June 1, 2020 to April 30, 2021. Thereafter, I would expect 
the contract to be renewed for a term of May through April, consistent with our fiscal year and our 
other janitorial contracts. 
 
 A summary of the current and proposed contract costs is presented in Table 1.    
 

 

 Table 1.  Janitorial Contract Amounts 
 

 
I recommend you approve the Independent Contractor Agreement for Janitorial Services 
between the City of Galena and Karen White. Thank you. 

Facility  Contractor  Current  
Monthly Cost

Proposed  
Monthly Cost

Police Department  Karen White $980 $550

City Hall  Mary Halstead $650  

City Hall Public Restrooms  Mary Halstead $605  

Rec Park North Public Restroom  Mary Halstead $575  

Rec Park South Public Restroom   Mary Halstead $575  

Grant Park Public Restroom  Mary Halstead $575  

Market House Public Restrooms  Mary Halstead $580  

Turner Hall Building  Jeremy White $350  

Public Works Building  Jeremy White $110  

 

Page 67 of 111



1 | P a g e  

 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT FOR JANITORIAL SERVICES 
 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF GALENA AND KAREN WHITE     
 
 
 

  This agreement, made and entered into this _____ day of _________________, 2020, by and between 
Mary Halstead, an independent contractor, hereinafter referred to as (“Contractor”), and the City of Galena, 
an Illinois Municipal Corporation, hereinafter referred to as (“City”). 
 
  The parties have entered into an independent contractor agreement in writing where Contractor 
agrees to provide janitorial services to City in the maintenance of certain property, facilities and equipment, 
reference to which this agreement is made and by reference made a part of this agreement. 
 
  In consideration of premises and the promises contained and the payments as provided to be made, 
the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Contractor shall provide janitorial services for the City.  Said services shall involve the cleaning of 

the following City facility: 
 

a. Police Department, 311 N Bench Street 
 

2. City agrees to engage the services of Contractor and agrees to pay Contractor for services at the 
rates listed below for each individual facility: 

 
a. Police Department, 311 N Bench Street ($550 per month) 

 
3. The above‐stated rates are to continue in force and effect for the periods commencing and 

concluding as follows: 
 

a. Police Department, 311 N Bench Street (June 1, 2020‐April 30, 2021) 
 

4. Contractor shall clean the facility in accordance with the schedule attached hereto and made part 
hereof as Exhibit A.   

 
5. Cleaning shall include shall include, but is not limited to dusting, sweeping, mopping, scrubbing, 

polishing, vacuuming and collecting and depositing refuse and recyclables in all areas of the 
buildings, including restrooms, rooms, kitchen, and hallways.  It is understood that there may be 
special occasions when cleaning outside of the schedule is required and that extra time may be 
required to complete the cleaning.  Any such extraordinary hours, and the compensation for 
same, have been accounted for by the parties in the compensation terms described in paragraph 
one hereof.  There shall be no adjustments to the compensation during the term of the contract.  

 
6. An inventory of fixtures to be cleaned is provided as Exhibit B, attached hereto and made part 

hereof.  The specific cleaning requirements for the facility are described in Exhibit C, attached 
hereto and made part hereof.       

 
7. The City shall provide all cleaning agents, equipment, materials, and tools required.  The City shall 

provide all paper products such as hand towels, toilet paper and trash can liners.  Contractor shall 
inform the City when such supplies need to be replenished.  Contractor shall also inform City of 

Page 68 of 111



2 | P a g e  

 

any equipment malfunctions or problems or damages relating to the buildings, facilities, utility 
systems, fixtures, tables, chairs, etc. 

 
8. Contractor must be physically and mentally capable of performing all duties and tasks necessary to 

satisfactorily render janitorial maintenance services. 
 

9. Contractor agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City, its officers, employees, agents 
and servants, from and against any and all liability, claims, demands, actions or suits of whatsoever 
character or kind, arising or resulting or in any way connected with Contractor’s performance of 
this Agreement, the operations of the Contractor or the failure of the Contractor to comply with 
the provisions and requirements of all applicable permits, licenses, laws or regulations. 

 
10. In the event the Contractor hires any employees, agents or servants to assist the Contractor in the 

performance of this Agreement, then the Contractor shall be required to provide worker’s 
compensation insurance coverage on behalf of said party or parties and agrees to name the City as 
an additional insured on said policy.  Said worker’s compensation insurance shall be for the 
purpose of insuring both the Contractor and the City against any worker’s compensation liability or 
similar claim that may be made pursuant to acts arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  
A copy of said worker’s compensation insurance coverage shall be provided to the City in such 
event. 

 
11. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor under this agreement, rather than a 

covenantor, agent, employee, or representative of the City, and no act, action, or omission to act 
by the Contractor, or any of her principals, officers, directors, employees, or agents, shall in any 
way obligate or be binding upon the City or its officials.  Contractor covenants and agrees that he 
shall not represent to any third party that she or any of her principals, officers, directors, 
employees, or agents are officials, agents, employees, or representatives of the City. 

 
    Accordingly, Contractor’s status as independent contractor shall require that: 
 

a. City controls only the result to be achieved by the work of the Contractor but not the 
means by which such work is accomplished; 

 
b. Contractor’s only compensation shall be “profit” (or contract payments) and not “wages”, 

and from which such payments no withholding will be made; 
 

c. Contractor shall not work exclusively (within any twelve (12) month period) for City; 
 

d. Contractor shall not be entitled to vacation, health, sick leave, pension, or any other 
“employee” type benefits. 

 
11. Contractor affirmatively states that he/she is a sole proprietor or a business that shall remain an 

equal opportunity employer which does not discriminate in its employment practices or in the 
award of contracts and as such does not discriminate based on race, color, religion, gender, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin,  age,  disability,  genetic  information,  veteran,   or  
marital  status,  in  accordance  with applicable federal, state and local laws. 

 
12. Contractor agrees and promises to comply with all applicable ordinances, statutes and regulations, 

including but not limited to the equal employment and affirmative  action  provisions  pertaining 
to  public  contracts  by Section  2‐105  of  the  Illinois Human Rights Act (Codified as paragraph 2‐
105 of Chapter 775 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes as amended), attached as Exhibit D. 

Page 69 of 111



3 | P a g e  

 

 
13. This agreement may be terminated with 30 days written notice by either party. 

 
14. It is further agreed that this agreement may be renewed upon the same terms and conditions, 

subject to mutual agreement by the parties. 
 

15. This agreement shall be binding and inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, 
successors and assigns of the parties. 

 
16. This document shall contain the entirety of the agreement between the parties concerning the 

subject matter thereof, and shall not be modified except in a writing signed by both parties. 
 
  In the use of the agreement the term “he” shall mean male, female, neutral gender and plural or 
singular as the context may require. 
             

CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS, 
            A municipal corporation, 
 
 
          BY:    ____________________________________ 
            TERRY RENNER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 
             MARY BETH HYDE, CITY CLERK 
 
 
            ___________________________________ 
            CONTRACTOR 
 
 
ATTESTED BY:  _______________________________________ 

Page 70 of 111



4 | P a g e  

 

Exhibit A:  City of Galena Public Buildings Cleaning Schedule 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit B:  City of Galena Public Buildings Inventory of Fixtures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Facility 

 
Address/Location 

 
Season 

Days 
Per 
Week 

 
Weekly Schedule 

Approximate Sq. 
Feet 

City Hall  101 Green Street  Annual  2  Every Tuesday and 
Friday (or instead 
of Friday, Sat/Sun) 

7,000 

Public Restrooms  101 Green Street   Annual  7  Daily   360 

Police Department  311 N Bench 
Street 

Annual  2  Every Monday and 
Thursday 

5,000 upstairs 
1,000 downstairs 

South Recreation 
Park Restrooms 

Field Street  Mid‐April‐Mid‐
October 

7  Daily  300 

North Recreation 
Park Restrooms 

Field Street  Mid‐April‐Mid‐
October 

7  Daily  430 

Grant Park 
Restrooms 

Park Avenue  Mid‐April‐Mid‐
October 

7  Daily  504 

 
Fixtures 

 
City Hall 

101 Green 
Street Pubic 
Restrooms 

Police  
Department

North 
Rec Park 

South Rec 
Park 

 
Grant Park 

              

Sinks  3  4  3  4  3  4 

Toilets  2  4  2  4  4  5 

Urinals  0  2  0  3  2  2 

Mirrors  2  4  2  4  4  4 

Page 71 of 111



5 | P a g e  

 

Exhibit C:  City of Galena Police Department Cleaning Requirements 
 

 
POLICE DEPT 

 
Task 

311 N Bench 
Street 

 

D
ai
ly
 (
Se
co
n
d
 F
lo
o
r 
O
n
ly
) 

Dust to remove all cobwebs.   X 

Dust all desks, table tops, and other horizontal 
surfaces.  

 
X 

Damp mop all tile floors with a disinfectant solution.  X 

Vacuum all carpet floors and rugs.  Clean spots prior 
to vacuuming. 

X 

Spot clean doorknobs, doorjambs, and walls.  X 

Damp wipe vinyl chairs.  X 

Wash clean and dry mirrors.  Dust frame of mirrors.  X 

Wash and dry all sinks inside and out and polish the 
metal fixtures.   

 
X 

Clean all restroom toilets with disinfectant solution.   X 

Refill all dispensers, including soap, hand sanitation, 
toilet paper, and paper towel.  

 
X 

Other general cleaning as may be required to 
maintain a clean and orderly interior. 

 
X 

Clean interior side of windows.  X 

Bi‐monthly  Vacuum rugs on the lower level.  X 

  Sweep and mop lockerooms, main room, hallway, 
and foyer at base of steps. 

X 

  Vacuum steps from lower level to second floor.  X 

  Empty garbage receptacles.  X 

Bi‐annually  Clean exterior of all lower level windows and doors 
at lease once in spring and once in summer. 

 
X 

 
 

Page 72 of 111



Exhibit D 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS 
(775 ILCS 5/) Illinois Human Rights Act. 

 
(775 ILCS 5/2‐105) (from Ch. 68, par. 2‐105)  

    Sec. 2‐105. Equal Employment Opportunities; Affirmative Action.  
 

    (A) Public Contracts. Every party to a public contract and every eligible bidder shall:  
        (1) Refrain from unlawful discrimination and discrimination based on citizenship status in employment 
and undertake affirmative action to assure equality of employment opportunity and eliminate the effects of 
past discrimination; 
        (2) Comply with the procedures and requirements of the Department's regulations concerning equal 
employment opportunities and affirmative action; 
        (3) Provide such information, with respect to its employees and applicants for employment, and 
assistance as the Department may reasonably request; 
        (4) Have written sexual harassment policies that shall include, at a minimum, the following information: 
(i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual harassment under State law; (iii) a 
description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) the vendor's internal complaint process including 
penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department and 
the Commission; (vi) directions on how to contact the Department and Commission; and (vii) protection 
against retaliation as provided by Section 6‐101 of this Act. A copy of the policies shall be provided to the 
Department upon request. 
    (B) State Agencies. Every State executive department, State agency, board, commission, and 
instrumentality shall:  
        (1) Comply with the procedures and requirements of the Department's regulations concerning equal 
employment opportunities and affirmative action; 
        (2) Provide such information and assistance as the Department may request. 
        (3) Establish, maintain, and carry out a continuing affirmative action plan consistent with this Act and the 
regulations of the Department designed to promote equal opportunity for all State residents in every aspect 
of agency personnel policy and practice. For purposes of these affirmative action plans, the race and national 
origin categories to be included in the plans are: American Indian or Alaska Native, Asian, Black or African 
American, Hispanic or Latino, Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander.  This plan shall include a current 
detailed status report: 
            (a) indicating, by each position in State service, the number, percentage, and average salary of 
individuals employed by race, national origin, sex and disability, and any other category that the Department 
may require by rule; 
            (b) identifying all positions in which the percentage of the people employed by race, national origin, 
sex and disability, and any other category that the Department may require by rule, is less than four‐fifths of 
the percentage of each of those components in the State work force; 
            (c) specifying the goals and methods for increasing the percentage by race, national origin, sex and 
disability, and any other category that the Department may require by rule, in State positions; 
            (d) indicating progress and problems toward meeting equal employment opportunity goals, including, 
if applicable, but not limited to, Department of Central Management Services recruitment efforts, publicity, 
promotions, and use of options designating positions by linguistic abilities; 
            (e) establishing a numerical hiring goal for the employment of qualified persons with disabilities in the 
agency as a whole, to be based on the proportion of people with work disabilities in the Illinois labor force as 
reflected in the most recent decennial Census. 

Page 73 of 111



Page 7 of 8 

 

        (4) If the agency has 1000 or more employees, appoint a full‐time Equal Employment Opportunity 
officer, subject to the Department's approval, whose duties shall include: 
            (a) Advising the head of the particular State agency with respect to the preparation of equal 
employment opportunity programs, procedures, regulations, reports, and the agency's affirmative action 
plan. 
            (b) Evaluating in writing each fiscal year the sufficiency of the total agency program for equal 
employment opportunity and reporting thereon to the head of the agency with recommendations as to any 
improvement or correction in recruiting, hiring or promotion needed, including remedial or disciplinary 
action with respect to managerial or supervisory employees who have failed to cooperate fully or who are in 
violation of the program. 
            (c) Making changes in recruitment, training and promotion programs and in hiring and promotion 
procedures designed to eliminate discriminatory practices when authorized. 
            (d) Evaluating tests, employment policies, practices and qualifications and reporting to the head of the 
agency and to the Department any policies, practices and qualifications that have unequal impact by race, 
national origin as required by Department rule, sex or disability or any other category that the Department 
may require by rule, and to assist in the recruitment of people in underrepresented classifications. This 
function shall be performed in cooperation with the State Department of Central Management Services. 
            (e) Making any aggrieved employee or applicant for employment aware of his or her remedies under 
this Act. 
            In any meeting, investigation, negotiation, conference, or other proceeding between a State employee 
and an Equal Employment Opportunity officer, a State employee (1) who is not covered by a collective 
bargaining agreement and (2) who is the complaining party or the subject of such proceeding may be 
accompanied, advised and represented by (1) an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Illinois or (2) 
a representative of an employee organization whose membership is composed of employees of the State and 
of which the employee is a member. A representative of an employee, other than an attorney, may observe 
but may not actively participate, or advise the State employee during the course of such meeting, 
investigation, negotiation, conference or other proceeding. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to 
permit any person who is not licensed to practice law in Illinois to deliver any legal services or otherwise 
engage in any activities that would constitute the unauthorized practice of law. Any representative of an 
employee who is present with the consent of the employee, shall not, during or after termination of the 
relationship permitted by this Section with the State employee, use or reveal any information obtained 
during the course of the meeting, investigation, negotiation, conference or other proceeding without the 
consent of the complaining party and any State employee who is the subject of the proceeding and pursuant 
to rules and regulations governing confidentiality of such information as promulgated by the appropriate 
State agency. Intentional or reckless disclosure of information in violation of these confidentiality 
requirements shall constitute a Class B misdemeanor. 
        (5) Establish, maintain and carry out a continuing sexual harassment program that shall include the 
following: 
            (a) Develop a written sexual harassment policy that includes at a minimum the following information: 
(i) the illegality of sexual harassment; (ii) the definition of sexual harassment under State law; (iii) a 
description of sexual harassment, utilizing examples; (iv) the agency's internal complaint process including 
penalties; (v) the legal recourse, investigative and complaint process available through the Department and 
the Commission; (vi) directions on how to contact the Department and Commission; and (vii) protection 
against retaliation as provided by Section 6‐101 of this Act. The policy shall be reviewed annually. 
            (b) Post in a prominent and accessible location and distribute in a manner to assure notice to all 
agency employees without exception the agency's sexual harassment policy. Such documents may meet, but 
shall not exceed, the 6th grade literacy level. Distribution shall be effectuated within 90 days of the effective 
date of this amendatory Act of 1992 and shall occur annually thereafter. 
            (c) Provide training on sexual harassment prevention and the agency's sexual harassment policy as a 
component of all ongoing or new employee training programs. 

Page 74 of 111



Page 8 of 8 

 

        (6) Notify the Department 30 days before effecting any layoff. Once notice is given, the following shall 
occur: 
            (a) No layoff may be effective earlier than 10 working days after notice to the Department, unless an 
emergency layoff situation exists. 
            (b) The State executive department, State agency, board, commission, or instrumentality in which the 
layoffs are to occur must notify each employee targeted for layoff, the employee's union representative (if 
applicable), and the State Dislocated Worker Unit at the Department of Commerce and Economic 
Opportunity. 
            (c) The State executive department, State agency, board, commission, or instrumentality in which the 
layoffs are to occur must conform to applicable collective bargaining agreements. 
            (d) The State executive department, State agency, board, commission, or instrumentality in which the 
layoffs are to occur should notify each employee targeted for layoff that transitional assistance may be 
available to him or her under the Economic Dislocation and Worker Adjustment Assistance Act administered 
by the Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity. Failure to give such notice shall not invalidate 
the layoff or postpone its effective date. 
     As used in this subsection (B), "disability" shall be defined in rules promulgated under the Illinois 
Administrative Procedure Act.  
    (C) Civil Rights Violations. It is a civil rights violation for any public contractor or eligible bidder to:  
        (1) fail to comply with the public contractor's or eligible bidder's duty to refrain from unlawful 
discrimination and discrimination based on citizenship status in employment under subsection (A)(1) of this 
Section; or 
        (2) fail to comply with the public contractor's or eligible bidder's duties of affirmative action under 
subsection (A) of this Section, provided however, that the Department has notified the public contractor or 
eligible bidder in writing by certified mail that the public contractor or eligible bidder may not be in 
compliance with affirmative action requirements of subsection (A). A minimum of 60 days to comply with the 
requirements shall be afforded to the public contractor or eligible bidder before the Department may issue 
formal notice of non‐compliance. 
    (D) As used in this Section:  
        (1) "American Indian or Alaska Native" means a person having origins in any of the original peoples of 
North and South America, including Central America, and who maintains tribal affiliation or community 
attachment. 
        (2) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, or 
the Indian subcontinent, including, but not limited to, Cambodia, China, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, 
Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, Thailand, and Vietnam. 
        (3) "Black or African American" means a person having origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa. 
Terms such as "Haitian" or "Negro" can be used in addition to "Black or African American". 
        (4) "Hispanic or Latino" means a person of Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South or Central American, or 
other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race. 
        (5) "Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander" means a person having origins in any of the original 
peoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other Pacific Islands. 
(Source: P.A. 97‐396, eff. 1‐1‐12.)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75 of 111



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:    Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 

FROM:    Mark Moran, City Administrator    

DATE:    May 22, 2020 

RE:    Reopening of Downtown    
 

 
The Galena Downtown Business Association (GDBA), the Galena Area Chamber of Commerce, 
Galena Country Tourism, NW Illinois Economic Development, and City of Galena staff have been 
working together in recent weeks to plan for the safe reopening of the visitor‐based economy—
particularly in the downtown. Our planning is moving forward entirely within the framework of the 
Restore Illinois plan implemented by Governor Pritzker. I am writing to present a proposal for 
reopening with the support the participating groups.  
 
On May 29, the entire State of Illinois is expected to move from Phase 2 to Phase 3 of the Restore 
Illinois plan. Non‐essential retail will be allowed to open with capacity limits. As of a change 
approved by the Governor on May 20, bars and restaurants will be allowed to offer outdoor seating 
for food and beverage service in Phase 3 (May 29). According to the state rules, tables must be six 
feet apart and not on the sidewalk. Face coverings and distancing measures for staff must be 
followed. Indoor seating, at a reduced capacity, will not be allowed until Phase 4 which we will not 
reach until June 26 at the earliest.  
 
Given the impending opening of retail and the new rules for bars and restaurants, I am attaching a 
proposal that we believe will help facilitate a safe reopening of our visitor‐based economy. The 
following are the goals of the proposal: 
 

1. Create space in the downtown for greater physical distancing and safety for residents and 
visitors.  

2. Provide space for bars and restaurants to offer outdoor sit‐down service to patrons. 
3. Restart the downtown economy by allowing safe access to those businesses permitted to 

reopen. 
 
Please know that the proposal is not a perfect solution, but an attempt to be as accommodating as 
possible to assist the businesses that are the backbone of our community and economy. There will 
undoubtedly be inconveniences and unintended outcomes. We are committed to working together 
to thoughtfully overcome any impediments.  
 
Overcoming the many challenges of the current crisis requires teamwork, flexibility, and creativity. I 
would like to thank the organizations and their individual members that devoted their time to move 
Galena forward by assisting with the preparation of this proposal.    
   

 

Page 76 of 111



2 of 3 

Downtown Galena Open Spaces Proposal 
 

A. Close Main Street to vehicle traffic from Green Street to Meeker Street. 
 

1. Hill Street and Franklin Street would remain through streets and open to traffic. 
2. Encourage deliveries from temporary delivery parking at Main Street at Green Street, 

Washington Street, Hill Street, and Perry Street  
3. Create parking zones for persons with disabilities on Commerce Street near the 

intersections with Perry Street, Hill Street, and Washington Street. 
4. Reroute the truck route from Main Street to Bench Street (between Meeker Street and 

Franklin Street). Temporarily remove on‐street parking as needed on the detour to facilitate 
trucks. 
 

B. Close the streets Friday morning, May 29 through at least June 26 at which time the program will be 
evaluated. 

 
C. Pedestrians would be permitted to use both the sidewalks and the street. Opening of the street to 

pedestrians is believed to be important for physical distancing.  
 

D. The lane where vehicles would normally travel would be available for pedestrians but would also 
serve as a lane for emergency vehicles if needed.  
 

E. Restaurants and bars would be permitted to position tables and chairs on the street near their 
establishment for outdoor eating and drinking.  

 
1. Each bar and restaurant would be allocated Main Street parking spaces for outdoor eating 

and drinking as close to their business as possible. Eating and drinking space for a business 
may be on the opposite side of the street where space is limited. The attached map 
provides a preliminary layout showing the zone for each establishment. These zones could 
be adjusted. 

2. All eating and drinking areas may extend from the curb to edge of the parking spaces. 
3. Eating and drinking areas must be separated from the neighboring eating and drinking areas 

by stanchions and chains or other dividers. (The city should have enough sections of barrier 
fencing (parade fencing) for use between establishments.) Establishments may not share 
spaces. 

4. Consumption of alcohol would be permitted in the eating and drinking area associated with 
the establishment that sold the alcohol.  Proof of dram insurance extending to the on‐street 
eating and drinking area must be provided by each establishment.   

5. Tables and chairs to be provided by each establishment.  
6. Shade devices and temporary lighting are permitted. Electrical connections for lighting must 

be approved by the Electrical Inspector.  
7. One portable sandwich board sign may be displayed per establishment. A sign may also be 

displayed on each interior side of the eating and drinking area. 
8. Tables, chairs, shade structures, and signs may remain on the street during the duration of 

the street closure. A time for street sweeping by the City may be established not more than 
once weekly. 

Page 77 of 111



3 of 3 

9. All cooking must be conducted inside the establishment.  
10. Trash and recycling collection and disposal is the responsibility of each establishment. 

Collection bins must be emptied not later than the end of each day. 
11. No live music, broadcast music, movies, or broadcast sport. 
12. No outdoor games, such as bags or ring toss. 
13. No standing areas allowed that would promote congregating. 
14. No pets in the eating and drinking areas. 
15. All patrons must be out of the outdoor eating and drinking areas by 10:00 p.m. Sunday‐

Thursday and 11:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday. 
16. A restaurant is defined as a place where the principal business is serving meals. A restaurant 

has kitchen facilities where food is cooked and dining room facilities where meals are served 
to guests. 

17. Each establishment must fully comply with all state, county, and local regulations pertaining 
to food service and servicing patrons.  

 
F. No special permit fees for any businesses to participate. An application is required. 
 
G. No smoking in the outdoor eating and drinking areas, within 15 feet of the areas, or within 15 feet 

any business exits or windows that open. 
 

H. Allow the Desoto Hotel to utilize the City Hall lot for customer parking on weekends and evenings 
during the week. 

 
I. Porta potties may need to be provided depending on state rules regarding access restrooms inside 

bars and restaurants. 
 

J. Bars and restaurants outside of the downtown would be permitted to utilize their outdoor property for 
eating and drinking in accordance with the state guidelines beginning May 29 through at least June 26. All 
patrons must be out of the outdoor eating and drinking areas by 9:00 p.m. Sunday‐Thursday and 10:00 p.m. 
Friday and Saturday. 

 
K. The City would have the right to modify the rules of the program at any time as needed. 

 
Galena Chief of Police, Lori Huntington and Fire Chief, Randy Beadle, were consulted for the 
development of this proposal. 

 

Page 78 of 111



L

O

G

 

C

A

B

I

N

P

A

R

A

D

I

S

E

F

R

I

E

D

 

G

R

E

E

N

T

O

M

A

T

O

E

S

G

O

B

B

I

E

'
S

G

A

L

E

N

A

B

R

E

W

E

R

Y

D

U

R

T

Y

 

G

U

R

T

'
S

A

Y

A

L

A

'
S

C

A

N

N

O

V

A

'
S

G

O

L

D

R

O

O

M

C

A

M

P

E

C

H

E

B

I

G

 

B

I

L

L

'

S

P

U

D

G

Y

'

S

F

R

I

T

Z

 

&

 

F

R

I

T

E

S

L

I

T

T

L

E

T

O

K

Y

O

G

A

L

E

N

A

 

J

U

I

C

E

R

Y

V

I

C

T

O

R

Y

C

A

F

E

G

R

A

P

E

 

E

S

C

A

P

E

T

A

J

I

N

G

A

L

E

N

A

 

C

E

L

L

A

R

S

M

A

S

S

B

A

C

H

 

W

I

N

E

R

Y

M

A

R

K

E

T

 

H

O

U

S

E

V

F

W

U

N

D

E

R

 

T

H

E

L

A

M

P

L

I

G

H

T

V

I

N

N

Y

V

A

N

N

U

C

H

I

'

S

J

A

M

I

E

'

S

 

W

I

N

E

E

M

B

E

G

R

E

E

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

T

A

V

E

R

N

G

E

N

E

R

A

L

S

T

R

O

L

L

E

Y

D

E

P

O

T

 

C

A

F

E

K

A

L

A

D

I

'
S

E

A

G

L

E

'
S

 

C

L

U

B

E

L

K

'
S

 

C

L

U

B

3
7
6
 S

F

3
9
8
 S

F

7
5
0
 S

F

4
3
2
 S

F

1
6
7
 S

F

2
6
0
 S

F

6
6
5
 S

F

3
9
8
 S

F

3
8
4
 S

F

8
7
0
 S

F

7
9
8
 S

F

5
7
2
 S

F

2
9
0
 S

F

2
6
8
 S

F

3
0
8
 S

F

2
2
6
 S

F

2
5
8
 S

F

2
4
2
 S

F

1
7
2
 S

F

3
6
4
 S

F

1
6
2
 S

F

2
1
8
 S

F

7
7
0
 S

F

2
9
5
 S

F

1
1
1
5
 S

F

4
5
4
 S

F

8
6
7
 S

F

5
2
8
 S

F

3
6
4
 S

F

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
G

A
LE

N
A

SHEET

FILE NO.

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
G

A
L

E
N

A

Page 79 of 111

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY: MJO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: MPM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"= 150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
101 GREEN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALENA, IL 61036

AutoCAD SHX Text
2020 PEDESTRIAN MODIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNTOWN COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. Commerce Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. Commerce Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. Main Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. Main Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. Bench Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. Bench Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hill Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Perry Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Diagonal Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Washington Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Meeker Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
S. Prospect Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. Prospect Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Franklin Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Galena River

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hughlett Branch

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. Bench Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. Main Street

AutoCAD SHX Text
Green Street



City Council - City of Galena 
101 Green Street 
Galena, Il 61036 
815.777.1050 
May 20, 2020 

Council, 

I'm writing to submit a topic to be presented at the upcoming City Council meeting, Tue., May 26, 2020.  
Galena’s tourism industry has been severely compromised by COVID-19. Specifically, Shelter in Place restrictions have 
limited business operations and halted revenue streams for many. Amongst some of the first affected were the food and 
drink establishments and according to the phased restrictions outlined in the Restore Illinois Plan, these very 
establishments will be the last allowed to be fully operational.  

Galena Country Tourism is asking the Council to consider uplifting restrictions and approve outdoor dining and gathering 
spaces in downtown Galena while maintaining necessary public health and safety measures. We would support the 
Council’s decision to allow food, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverage consumption in a controlled outdoor space. 

This afternoon, Governor J.B. Pritzker announced expanded outdoor dining options for restaurants throughout the state 
and encouraged municipalities to help restaurants and bars expand their outdoor seating options: 

“With Phase 3, bars and restaurants will have the option to resume operations for outdoor seating only. Tables 
must be six feet apart and away from the sidewalks, masks and distancing measures for staff must continue to 
be followed, and other precautions and guidance will be issued. 

Municipalities are encouraged to help restaurants and bars expand their outdoor seating options.” 
– https://www2.illinois.gov/Pages/news-item.aspx?ReleaseID=21568

The Governor’s action to allow for expanded outdoor dining is a step in the right direction. Galena Country Tourism is 
fully supportive of this initiative, and we are calling on the City of Galena to embrace an innovative strategy. We 
encourage street closures, expanded sidewalk cafes, use of parking lots and public ways, and more to allow for creative 
dining options for residents and visitors alike.  

We will continue to work to collaborate with all stakeholders - business owners, elected officials, public health experts - 
to work through this crisis, flatten the curve, and revive our economy.  

Thank you for your consideration to be included on the agenda. 

Rose Noble 
President/CEO  
Galena Country Tourism 

Page 80 of 111

mailto:rnoble@visitgalena.org
https://www2.illinois.gov/Pages/news-item.aspx?ReleaseID=21568


From: "Galena Downtown Business Assoc." <gdbaemail@gmail.com> 
Subject: Recommendations 
Date: May 21, 2020 at 9:38:51 AM CDT 
To: Rose Noble <rnoble@visitgalena.org> 
Cc: Deb Mikol <damikol19@gmail.com>, Michelle Berning <mberning@illinoisbank.com>, 
dtmeadows@aol.com, "Galena Downtown Business Assoc." <gdbaemail@gmail.com> 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
The Galena Downtown Business Association would like to acknowledge their support for the attached 
letter written by Galena Country Tourism. 
 
Galena Downtown Business Association is also asking the Council to consider uplifting restrictions and 
approve outdoor dining and gathering spaces in downtown Galena while maintaining necessary public 
health and safety measures. We would support the Council’s decision to allow food, alcoholic and non‐
alcoholic beverage consumption in a controlled outdoor space. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
Dana Meadows, Alana Turner, Deb Mikol & Michele Berning 
GDBA Board 
563‐542‐5351 (Dana) 
815‐281‐0673  (Alana) 
 

Page 81 of 111



 

 

May 21st 2020   

Galena Area Chamber of Commerce 
 412 S Main Street  
Galena, IL. 61036 
 

Galena City Council 
City Council - City of Galena 101 Green Street  
Galena, IL. 61036  

Dear Mayor & Galena City Council Members, 

The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce would like to go on record in support 
of the proposed outdoor dining initiative to be presented at the upcoming City 
Council meeting, Tue., May 26, 2020.  Galena business owners, to include our 
downtown area restaurants and bars have been terribly disadvantaged by the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Specifically, Illinois Shelter in Place restrictions have 
limited business operations and restricted income streams for many chamber 
member business owners.   

The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce  is asking the Council to consider 
modifying restrictions to approve outdoor dining and gathering spaces in 
downtown Galena while maintaining necessary public health and safety 
measures. We would support the Council’s decision to allow food, alcoholic 
and non-alcoholic beverage consumption in a controlled outdoor space. If 
appropriate safety measures are put into place and maintained, we feel this 
would be a positive opportunity to bring back much needed revenue for 
Galena’s downtown businesses as well as boost the overall morale of the local 
and business community in Galena. 

  

 Governor J.B. Pritzker has announced expanded outdoor dining options for 
restaurants throughout the state and encouraged municipalities to help 
restaurants and bars expand their outdoor seating options:   

“With Phase 3, bars and restaurants will have the option to resume operations 
for outdoor seating only. Tables must be six feet apart and away from the 
sidewalks, masks and distancing measures for staff must continue to be 
followed, and other precautions and guidance will be issued.  Municipalities 
are encouraged to help restaurants and bars expand their outdoor seating 
options.”   

 

Page 82 of 111



 

 

The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce is supportive of this initiative, and we 
are calling on the City of Galena to implement this plan as soon as possible. 
We believe that street closures, expanded sidewalk cafes, use of parking lots 
and public ways, will allow for creative dining options for residents and visitors 
alike. This type of pedestrian “cafe culture” has been very successful in other 
communities on a permanent, seasonal basis. We believe these types of 
modifications could potentially be a huge draw for not only business 
recruitment and retention, but expanded tourism in our downtown area.  

 Thank you for your consideration. 

 Sincerely, 

Angela DeVere 
Executive Director 
Galena Area Chamber of Commerce 

Jerry Howard 
Assistant Executive Director 
Galena Area Chamber of Commerce 

Board Members:  
President: Nathan Vondra, Vice President: Matt Blaum, Secretary: Jay 
Dickerson, Treasurer: Kelli Jackson, Trent Yenney, Caprinia Abt, Cindy Foley, 
Denise Spielman, Nikki Peebles 

 

 

 

Page 83 of 111



1

Mark Moran

From: Catherine Kouzmanoff <catkouz@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, May 11, 2020 1:55 PM
To: Mark Moran
Subject: Open Container Laws in Downtown Galena
Attachments: MapOpenContainer.jpg

Dear City Council and Mayor Renner, 

I had previously devised and idea for reusable cups downtown but was ultimately not comfortable with the sanitation that 
would be needed for safe consumption during this pandemic, so I offer this instead: 

Due to COVID guidelines and safety restrictions, it has become critical to increase sales in more creative ways. It is 
apparent that restaurants and bars will have limited capacity for many months to come if not years, and any way we can 
increase the economic viability of downtown Galena should be of urgent consideration. With that in mind, we need to be 
thinking of immediate solutions that are safe to implement and able to halt immediately. 

After a lot of brain storming and working out the what ifs, I would like to propose a special use permit for Galena Liquor 
License Holders to allow for carry out beverages. Each license holder would have the option to buy a permit to allow them 
to fill alcoholic beverages in designated plastic cups to be consumed in downtown Galena. 

 Permit cost $300 for the remainder of 2020 subject to any sudden shut down for COVID related concerns. 
 A sign for open container allowance map and responsibilities should be posted within 24” of the sale of the 

beverage. 
 Existing license and insurance responsibilities include every drink we sell regardless of where it is consumed, so 

no changes are required to dram insurance. “If you are allowed to sell drinks to customers who are able to walk 
out with, such as a mixed drink, bottle of beer, glass of wine or draft beer there would be no need to contact the 
insurance company. If the City decided it was ok to allow open containers it would not change your premium.” 
Paul Kern Insurance Co. 

 Pop up frames from City Hall for holding recycling bags at each participating businesses to be maintained by the 
business including replacing bags when full and storing full bags within their business until putting out for existing, 
Tuesday & Friday morning recycling pick ups from Montgomery Trucking. 

 Designated cup: one type of specifically designated cup for all businesses to use such as a red solo cup. All 
businesses use the same within the guidelines of red and plastic, so it is easy for law enforcement to see who is 
cocktailing down Main St. 

 We are all in this together and we will all keep Main St. clean and safe together. 

It is my goal in all my business ventures to help with ideas that create a positive community effect through tourism. 
Allowing for street closings and sidewalk dining as in Dino Rigopoulos' proposal is a great addition. If we can allow for 
'open container in downtown Galena,' I can create branded and reusable cups for purchase to raise money to build the 
dog park. I would also like to support a 'no straw' unless requested rule and/or that straws used for outside consumption 
must be biodegradable. 

This special use permit would not overwrite existing liquor laws such as being at least 21, not drinking and driving, 
consumption harmful while pregnant, etc. The liquor license holder already has this responsibility, training certification, 
and insurance, so it would not be relevant to add it to open container consumption. Or I should say, it would be redundant.

Other liquor license holding businesses in support of this plan are: The Goldroom, Ayala's, Gobbies, Big Bills Sandwich 
Shop, Fried Green Tomatoes, Durty Gurts, Paradise, and The Log Cabin. 

Thank you for your consideration. I am available any time for further discussion virtually or otherwise. 

Sincerely, 

Page 84 of 111



2

Catherine Kouzmanoff aka Miss Kitty 
Owner, The Grape Escape 
(815) 238-8651 
catkouz@gmail.com 

Page 85 of 111



Page 86 of 111



 

  
 May 21st 2020  
 
To: The Honorable JB Pritzker  
Governor James R Thompson Center  
100 W Randolph 16-100 Chicago, Illinois 60601  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Dear Governor Pritzker:  
 
The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce would like to thank you for putting forth the “Restore 
Illinois” plan to safely reopen our state’s economy for both commerce and social interaction. We 
have heard from many of our chamber members who agree with the public health requirements 
of the plan, but we have also heard from local business owner members who have specific 
concerns and suggestions for modifying the current plan.  
 
Among the suggestions for modification is concern about the groupings of small cities, with 
larger cities, rural counties, and broad geographic areas within the regions. Utilizing the 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) regions of the state, the “Restore Illinois” map outlines four 
regions that combined the 11 original EMS regions.  
The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce feels it is appropriate to maintain the 11 regions as set 
forth on the EMS map and we request your consideration for modifying the plan with such an 
adjustment. Also, among the prominent suggestions is a revision to the 28-day timeline for 
stability or a decrease in COVID-19-like hospital admissions.  
 
Reducing that timeline from 28 days to 14 days would allow regions that also meet the other 
requirements to move to the next phase sooner, but still with an adequate period of time for data 
study and patient observation. We request your consideration for modifying the plan with this 
adjustment, as well. The Galena Area Chamber of Commerce would like to see our business 
community remain intact through the Covid-19 crisis, and beyond.  
 
Historic Galena, Illinois, population 3,500, has over one million visits per year as a popular 
tourist destination in normal circumstances, however, right now, as the majority of our 
businesses can only offer online shopping or curbside pick-up and delivery service to mostly 
locals, our business owners are really struggling. Due to our proximity to Iowa and Wisconsin, 
we feel our businesses are at a competitive disadvantage.  
 

Page 87 of 111



 

We know we share your sincere hope that Illinois business owners will be able to recover, 
prosper and grow as soon as possible, while maintaining the health and safety of everyone 
involved.  
 
We look forward to continuing our partnership towards that goal and look forward to your reply 
concerning the request to revisit the timeline revision and geographic modifications for Illinois.  
 
Thank you! 
  
Sincerely,  
 
Angela DeVere, Executive Director  
Jerry Howard-Assistant Executive Director  
 
Galena Area Chamber of Commerce,  
412 South Main Street, Galena, IL. 61036  
www.GalenaChamber.com   
 
Board Members 
President: Nathan Vondra, Vice President Matt Blaum, Secretary: Jay Dickerson, Treasurer: 
Kelli Jackson, Trent Yenney, Cindy Foley, Nikki Peebles, Caprinia Abt, Denise Spielman 

Page 88 of 111



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, PO Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050          Facsimile: 815-777-3083          www.cityofgalena.org 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:      Honorable Mayor Renner and City Council 
 

FROM:    Andy Lewis, City Engineer      
 
DATE:     21 May 2020 
 
RE:      East Side Utility System Improvements  
      Approval of Notice to Award 
 
 
We were informed this week the agreement for our low interest loan with the Illinois EPA was 
approved. We are now able to move forward with the project and issue a ‘Notice to Award’ 
(copy attached) and finalize bid documents with our successful bidder Louie’s Trenching 
Service. 
 
City staff will work with our consultants IIW Engineers and Community Funding and Planning 
Services to complete the contract agreement and arrange a pre‐construction meeting of 
involved parties. 
 
I request the city council approves a  ‘Notice to Award’ to Louie’s Trenching Service in the bid 
amount of $1,384,717 for the East Side Utility System Improvements. Expected project start 
date will be late July. 

Page 89 of 111

alewis
Typewritten Text



NOTICE OF AWARD 
   
Dated: 26 May 2020 

To:  LOUIE’S TRENCHING SERVICE 
  9720 HW20 
  GALENA IL 61036 

     

OWNER'S Project No.:                   N/A 
 
Project:      EAST SIDE UTILITIES SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Contract No:     17054 
 
Contract for:      EAST SIDE UTILITIES SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * 
You are notified that your Bid dated 6 APRIL 2020 for the above Contract has been considered.  
You are the apparent successful bidder and have been awarded a contract for 
 
 Base Bid 
  (Indicate total work, alternates or sections of Work awarded) 
 
The Contract Price of your contract is $1,384,717.00         
 
Three copies of each of the proposed Contract Documents accompany this Notice of Award. 
 
You must comply with the following conditions precedent within fifteen days of the date of this 
Notice of Award, that is by 
 
1.  You must deliver to the OWNER three fully executed counterparts of the Agreement. 
 
2.  You must deliver with the executed Agreement the Contract Security (Bonds as specified 

in the Instructions to Bidders (paragraph 17), General Conditions (paragraph 5.1), and 
Supplementary Conditions (paragraph SC‐5.4) 

 
3.  List other conditions precedent:  None. 
 
Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle OWNER to consider 
your bid abandoned, to annul this Notice of Award, and to declare your Bid Security forfeited. 
 
Within ten days after you comply with those conditions, OWNER will return to you one fully 
signed counterpart of the Agreement. 
            City of Galena (Owner) 
   
       
          By:  ____________________________ 
                     (Authorized Signature ‐ Mayor)  

Page 90 of 111



CITY OF GALENA, ILLINOIS 
                                        101 Green Street, P.O. Box 310, Galena, Illinois 61036 

Telephone: 815-777-1050     •     Facsimile: 815-777-3083     •     www.cityofgalena.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Renner, City Council and City Administrator 

FROM:  Matt Oldenburg, Zoning Administrator 

DATE:  May 20, 2020 

RE: Cal. No. 20A-02, Applicant: Adam Johnson, 211 Fourth Street, Galena, IL 61036; and 
Owner: JHTD, LLC, 3250 Kennedy Circle, Suite 7, Dubuque, IA 52002.  Parcel: 22-200-
064-30, Part of NW ¼ of Section 13, T28N, R1W of the Fourth Principle Meridian, Galena, 
Jo Daviess County, Illinois.  Common address: 1249 North Franklin Street, Galena, IL 
61036.  Request for Map Amendment to rezone from Limited Agriculture to General 
Commercial district to allow Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Restaurant) and In-
Vehicle Sales & Service land uses.   

Summary: 
 
The applicant is requesting a Map Amendment, Special Use Permit and Highway 20 Development permit 
to rezone the property at 1249 Franklin Street from Limited Agriculture to General Commercial district to 
facilitate the construction of a new mixed-use building, contingent upon approval of rezoning. 
 
Please refer to the included narrative from the applicant.  The detailed land use regulations of the proposed 
uses are satisfied by the application contents.  Subsequent submittals for building permits will be 
administratively reviewed by City Staff to ensure all applicable and adopted codes are met. 
 
A site plan review of the proposed request was conducted per the criteria listed in §154.914. Siting and 
orientation of the proposed structure with parking requirements, landscaping requirements, lighting 
standards, natural protection standards and performance standards all meet the zoning code regulations.  
On-site stormwater detention is also required and is sized by a licensed P.E. 
 
A review of the Highway 20 Design Manual standards was conducted and the proposed structure and site 
improvements, including materials, fenestration and form are all within the intent of the Code. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request.  Land uses surrounding the property include other agriculture, 
commercial and institutional. 
 
At their meeting on May 13th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this request. 
 
I will be available for any questions. 
 
Approval Criteria & Recommendation for Map Amendment: 
 
In order to maintain internal consistency within this code and on the zoning map, proposed amendments to 
the text and zoning map must be consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

In determining whether the proposed amendment shall be approved, the following factors shall be 
considered: 

Page 91 of 111



2 of 2 

(1) Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption;   
 

(2) Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, 
development transitions, etc.;  

 
(3) Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 

characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on 
the capacity or safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking 
problems, or environmental impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive 
storm water runoff, water, air or noise pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other 
nuisances;   

 
(4) Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of 

the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, 
intents and requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;   

 
(5) Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 

concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone;  
 

(6) Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or 

 
               (7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 

benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.   

The Zoning Administrator and Zoning Board of Appeals shall make recommendations and the City 
Council shall take final action. 

          (1)     When the Zoning Board of Appeals or City Council deems it necessary or expedient, 
additional property in the zoning district may be considered for a zoning change provided that this 
additional property is also addressed in the public hearing notice, in accordance with § 154.919(F). 

          (2)     In the event of a written protest against a proposed amendment signed and 
acknowledged by the owners of 20% of the frontage proposed to be altered or by the owners of 
20% of the frontage immediately adjoining or across the alley or rear line therefrom or by the 
owners of 20% of the frontage directly opposite the frontage proposed to be altered as to such 
regulations or zoning district and field with the City Clerk, such amendment shall not be passed 
except by the favorable vote of two-thirds of all of the selected members of the City Council. 

 

Page 92 of 111



Cal. No. 20A-02 1 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

DETERMINATION & RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF GALENA 

 
REGARDING 

 
CALENDAR NUMBER:  Cal. No. 20A-02 
 
APPLICATION BY: Adam Johnson, 211 Fourth Street, Galena, IL 61036 and Owner: 

JHTD, LLC, 3250 Kennedy Circle, Suite 7, Dubuque, IA 52002. 
 
FOR: Request for Map Amendment to rezone from Limited Agriculture 

to General Commercial district to allow Indoor Commercial 
Entertainment (Restaurant) and In-Vehicle Sales & Service land 
uses. 

PROCEDURES 
 
Pursuant to law, a public hearing was held by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals regarding this matter 
on May 13, 2020.  The hearing was advertised in an edition of the Galena Gazette, in a quarter-page sized 
ad, that was available to the general public between 15 and 30 days prior to the hearing.  They were invited 
to testify if they so desired.  A quorum of the Board was present at the hearing in which the subject 
application and materials were reviewed and all persons were heard who desired to testify. 
 
NATURE OF APPLICATION 
 
The applicant is requesting a Map Amendment, Special Use Permit and Highway 20 Development permit 
to rezone the property at 1249 Franklin Street from Limited Agriculture to General Commercial district to 
facilitate the construction of a new mixed-use building, contingent upon approval of rezoning. 
 
Please refer to the included narrative from the applicant.  The detailed land use regulations of the proposed 
uses are satisfied by the application contents.  Subsequent submittals for building permits will be 
administratively reviewed by City Staff to ensure all applicable and adopted codes are met. 
 
A site plan review of the proposed request was conducted per the criteria listed in §154.914. Siting and 
orientation of the proposed structure with parking requirements, landscaping requirements, lighting 
standards, natural protection standards and performance standards all meet the zoning code regulations.  
On-site stormwater detention is also required and is sized by a licensed P.E. 
 
A review of the Highway 20 Design Manual standards was conducted and the proposed structure and site 
improvements, including materials, fenestration and form are all within the intent of the Code. 
 
Staff recommends approval of this request.  Land uses surrounding the property include other agriculture, 
commercial and institutional. 
 
At their meeting on May 13th, the ZBA recommended approval to the City Council for this request. 
 

Page 93 of 111



Cal. No. 20A-02 2 
 

 
 
PUBLIC SUPPORT AND/OR OBJECTIONS 
 
Testimony presented in favor of the request: 
 
§ Adam Johnson, 211 Fourth Street, Galena, said the zoning map amendment request is for a change 

in zoning from Limited Agriculture to General Commercial.  The zoning change would allow a 
mixed-use space.  Limited Ag is really not in this area anymore – the area is bound by General 
Commercial on two sides and Highway 20.  The Special Use Permit request would allow for a five-
unit multi-family residential dwelling space along with a main level restaurant.  This intensity is quite 
low and makes sense for the location.  The Highway 20 Corridor request meets the design guidelines.   

 
Testimony presented in opposition to the request 

 
No one spoke in opposition to the request. 
 
APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
§ Article 0, Section 154.005 through 154.008 sets forth the Purpose, Separability and  

Non-Liability, Abrogation and Rules of Interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance. 
§ Article 2, Section 154.201(A)(1) provides a definition and description of the Limited Agricultural 

District. 
§ Article 2, Section 154.201(C)(5) provides a definition and description of the General Commercial 

District. 
§ Article 2, Table 154.204.1 lists the Bulk Standards for Nonresidential Structures. 
§ Article 2, Table 154.208.1 lists the Intensity Standards for Nonresidential uses. 
§ Article 4, Table 154.403.1 lists the land uses permitted by right or by special uses for each zoning 

district. 
§ Article 6, Section 154.601 sets forth the off-street parking standards. 
§ Article 6, Section 154.605 sets forth the landscape and buffer yard standards. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.918 and Table 154.918.1 set forth the procedure for Required Non-

Administrative Development Review. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.919 lists and describes the Non-Administrative Development Review Common 

Elements of Procedure. 
§ Article 9, Section 154.920 sets forth the purpose, applicability, approval criteria, decision-maker, and 

application and review procedures for Rezoning. 
 
DETERMINATION 
 
Based upon the facts in this case, the Zoning Board of Appeals does find and conclude that the request by 
the City of Galena for a text amendment as described above should be approved for the following reasons: 

(1)     Whether the existing text or zoning designation was in error at the time of adoption;  N/A 

(2)     Whether there has been a change of character in the area or throughout the city due to 
installation of public facilities, other zone changes, new growth trends, deterioration, development 
transitions, etc.; This is applicable. 

Page 94 of 111



Cal. No. 20A-02 3 
 

(3)     Whether the proposed rezoning is compatible with the surrounding area and defining 
characteristics of the proposed zoning district or whether there may be adverse impacts on the capacity or 
safety of the portion of street network influenced by the rezoning, parking problems, or environmental 
impacts that the new zone may generate such as excessive storm water runoff, water, air or noise 
pollution, excessive nighttime lighting, or other nuisances;  This is compatible with defining 
characteristics of the proposed district. 

(4)     Whether the proposal is in conformance with and in furtherance of the implementation of 
the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, other adopted plans, and the policies, intents and 
requirements of this code, and other city regulations and guidelines;  This amendment is in conformance 
with the Comprehensive Plan. 

(5)     Whether adequate public facilities and services are available or will be made available 
concurrent with the projected impacts of development in the proposed zone; There are adequate public 
facilities and services available. 

(6)     Whether there is an adequate supply of land available in the subject area and the 
surrounding community to accommodate the zoning and community needs; or  There is an adequate 
supply of land available.. 

(7)     Whether there is a need in the community for the proposal and whether there will be 
benefits derived by the community or area by the proposed rezoning.  There is especially a need for 
housing options in the community. 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that this Zoning Board of Appeals does recommend to the City 
Council of the City of Galena that this request by Adam Johnson & JHTD, LLC for a Text Amendment as 
described above should be approved as proposed. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 13th day of May, A.D. 2020, by the Galena Zoning Board of Appeals by 
a vote of 7 ayes, 0 nays, 0 absent, 0 abstain, 0 recused. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      John Rosenthal, Chairperson 

Page 95 of 111



Page 96 of 111



� �� ��� ��� ��� ���

)HHW

/HJHQG

����B)UDQNOLQ

&RUSRUDWH�%RXQGDU\

3DUFHO�%RXQGDU\

32�'LVWULFW

1&�'LVWULFW

/$�'LVWULFW

+,�'LVWULFW

*&�'LVWULFW

3&�'LVWUFW

/'5�'LVWULFW

����

Page 97 of 111



� �� ��� ��� ��� ���

)HHW

����

Page 98 of 111



Page 99 of 111



Page 100 of 111



Page 101 of 111



Page 102 of 111



Page 103 of 111



Page 104 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     1
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783)
869379 1 Invoice PRINTER 05/04/2020 102.54 52.43.549.00

Total ACCESS SYSTEMS (120783): 102.54

ADDOCO INC (971)
4549 1 Invoice SHRUB MULCH IMPROV 05/14/2020 288.00 17.52.820.06

Total ADDOCO INC (971): 288.00

AMER. PUBLIC WORKS ASSOC. (758)
160278 1 Invoice APWA DUES 05/04/2020 208.00 01.45.561.00

Total AMER. PUBLIC WORKS ASSOC. (758): 208.00

AT & T (LOCAL) (103)
051520 1 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/PHONE 05/15/2020 52.70 01.41.552.00
051520 2 Invoice FIRE DEPARTMENT/PHO 05/15/2020 48.76 22.22.552.00
051520 3 Invoice POLICE/PHONE 05/15/2020 250.77 01.21.552.00
051520 4 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/PHON 05/15/2020 362.87 01.13.552.00
051520 5 Invoice FLOOD CONTROL/PHON 05/15/2020 48.66 20.25.515.00
051520 6 Invoice FINANCE/PHONE 05/15/2020 49.85 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T (LOCAL) (103): 813.61

AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065)
0 1 Invoice POLICE/LONG DISTANCE 05/15/2020 15.30 01.21.552.00
0 2 Invoice ADMINISTRATION/LONG  05/15/2020 31.75 01.13.552.00

Total AT & T LONG DISTANCE (119065): 47.05

B & S TURF TEAM (362)
050420 1 Invoice SPRAY WEEDS TRAININ 05/04/2020 135.00 22.22.929.00

Total B & S TURF TEAM (362): 135.00

CAMERON, KATHY (120227)
051520 1 Invoice DEPOSIT REFUND 05/15/2020 200.00 58.54.929.00

Total CAMERON, KATHY (120227): 200.00

CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840)
051520 1 Invoice CREATIVE CLOUD 05/15/2020 22.30 01.16.684.00
051520 2 Invoice RENTLY 05/15/2020 60.00 58.54.532.00
051520 3 Invoice BACKUP SERVICES 05/15/2020 279.00 01.13.512.04
051520 4 Invoice ADOBE/BUILDING 05/15/2020 15.93 01.13.512.04
051520 5 Invoice MEMORIAL 05/15/2020 100.00 01.11.929.01
051520 6 Invoice CITY HALL DROP BOX 05/15/2020 1,315.00 01.13.511.01
051520 7 Invoice PROTECTIVE EQUIPMEN 05/15/2020 443.59 01.13.651.02
051520 8 Invoice JANITOR SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 225.68 01.13.654.00
051520 9 Invoice SOAP DISPENSER 05/15/2020 56.69 01.21.511.00
051520 10 Invoice STANDING DESK 05/15/2020 149.99 01.21.651.00
051520 11 Invoice OPERATING SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 56.69 01.41.652.00
051520 12 Invoice CONCRETE TESTING 05/15/2020 79.46 01.45.651.01

Page 105 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     2
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

051520 13 Invoice WEED CONTROL 05/15/2020 345.06 17.52.652.00
051520 14 Invoice SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 56.69 22.22.652.00
051520 15 Invoice INSTITUTIONAL SUPPLIE 05/15/2020 282.37 58.54.654.01
051520 16 Invoice LIFEGUARD UNIFORMS 05/15/2020 50.93 59.55.691.04

Total CARD SERVICE CENTER (119840): 3,539.38

CIVIL MATERIALS (120397)
120632 1 Invoice MATERIALS 04/30/2020 123.92 20.25.515.00
120756 1 Invoice MAINTENANCE 05/11/2020 879.80 20.25.515.00
120834 1 Invoice MAINTENANCE 05/13/2020 247.68 20.25.515.00

Total CIVIL MATERIALS (120397): 1,251.40

DMASWA (120782)
873513 1 Invoice GLASS RECYCLING 05/11/2020 133.20 13.44.929.00

Total DMASWA (120782): 133.20

DOYLE, KEVIN (118771)
051220 1 Invoice REFUND 05/12/2020 78.13 01.11.912.00

Total DOYLE, KEVIN (118771): 78.13

DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631)
152756 1 Invoice FIRE EXTINGUISHER INS 04/24/2020 508.80 59.55.512.00

Total DUBUQUE FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC. (631): 508.80

ENERGETICS (470)
0860048 1 Invoice AERATOR DRIVE MOTOR 05/05/2020 11,071.76 52.43.929.00
0860049 1 Invoice AERATOR DRIVE MOTOR 05/05/2020 1,850.00 52.43.929.00

Total ENERGETICS (470): 12,921.76

FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045)
7342 1 Invoice REPAIR ELECTRICAL/WA 05/09/2020 1,042.00 59.55.511.01

Total FLEEGE ELECTRIC (1045): 1,042.00

GALENA GAZETTE (34)
4424 1 Invoice PUBLIC NOTICE 05/05/2020 57.75 01.16.553.00

Total GALENA GAZETTE (34): 57.75

GALENA-JDC HISTORICAL SOCIETY (119550)
051520 1 Invoice REFUND 05/15/2020 25.00 01.11.912.00

Total GALENA-JDC HISTORICAL SOCIETY (119550): 25.00

GASSER @ GALENA (24)
051520 1 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 43.61 01.41.579.02
051520 2 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 45.94 01.41.613.04
051520 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 15.22 01.41.652.00

Page 106 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     3
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

051520 4 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 45.40 01.41.652.04
051520 5 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 34.19 01.41.653.00
051520 6 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 165.53 13.44.540.04
051520 7 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 24.51 17.52.652.00
051520 8 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 106.39 20.25.515.00
051520 9 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 61.88 22.22.613.00
051520 10 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 66.56 22.22.652.00
051520 11 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 42.52 22.22.929.00
051520 12 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/15/2020 76.88 59.55.511.02

Total GASSER @ GALENA (24): 728.63

GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792)
107250 1 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 05/06/2020 100.00 52.43.532.00
107250 2 Invoice EXCHANGE ON LINE 05/06/2020 100.00 51.42.532.00

Total GLOBAL REACH INTERNET PROD. (119792): 200.00

GRANT COUNTY TRUCK BODIES LLC (120686)
64379 1 Invoice 2015 1-TON 05/07/2020 210.00 01.41.613.15

Total GRANT COUNTY TRUCK BODIES LLC (120686): 210.00

GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033)
GWI016132 1 Invoice 2015 FORD 1-TON 05/18/2020 116.56 01.41.613.15

Total GUY'S TRUCK & TRACTOR SERVICE (119033): 116.56

HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966)
052620 1 Invoice CITY HALL JANITOR 05/26/2020 325.00 01.13.511.07
052620 2 Invoice PUBLIC RESTROOMS AT  05/26/2020 302.50 01.13.511.08
052620 3 Invoice PARKS RESTROOMS 05/26/2020 862.50 17.52.511.00
052620 4 Invoice MARKET HOUSE RESTR 05/26/2020 290.00 01.13.511.09

Total HALSTEAD, MARY L. (119966): 1,780.00

HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931)
051520 1 Invoice HSA/FAMILY/EMPLOYEE  05/15/2020 7,679.66 01.218.0
051520 2 Invoice PPO/BLUE CROSS BLUE  05/15/2020 132.42 01.218.0
051520 3 Invoice HEALTH INSURANCE 05/15/2020 31,248.34 01.13.451.04
051520 4 Invoice COBRA INSURANCE 05/15/2020 1,504.98 01.13.451.04

Total HEALTHCARE SERVICE CORPORATION (118931): 40,565.40

HILBY, KEVIN (120823)
051520 1 Invoice REFUND 05/15/2020 25.00 17.52.929.00

Total HILBY, KEVIN (120823): 25.00

ICMA (119444)
326066-0515 1 Invoice DUES 05/15/2020 853.00 01.11.561.00

Total ICMA (119444): 853.00

Page 107 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     4
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

IL EPA (119716)
040120 3 Adjustmen EPA LOAN-WATER TOWE 04/01/2020 68,961.78- 51.42.716.00
040120 4 Adjustmen EPA LOAN-WATER TOWE 04/01/2020 12,086.51- 51.42.720.01

Total IL EPA (119716): 81,048.29-

ILCMA (354)
051520 1 Invoice ILCMA DUES 05/15/2020 251.00 01.11.561.00

Total ILCMA (354): 251.00

J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951)
2005222 1 Invoice STORM SEWER CATCH B 05/07/2020 43.00 01.41.514.06
2005496 1 Invoice STORM SEWER 05/15/2020 1,043.00 01.41.514.06

Total J & R SUPPLY INCORPORATED (951): 1,086.00

JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397)
051520 1 Invoice CITY HALL/ELECTRIC 05/15/2020 142.20 01.13.571.01
051520 2 Invoice PUBLIC WORKS/ELECTRI 05/15/2020 326.25 01.41.571.01
051520 3 Invoice PARKS/ELECTRIC 05/15/2020 144.72 17.52.571.01
051520 4 Invoice FIRE/ELECTRIC 05/15/2020 89.56 22.22.576.01
051520 5 Invoice POOL/ELECTRIC 05/15/2020 151.68 59.55.571.01
051520 6 Invoice STREET LIGHTS 05/15/2020 677.22 15.41.572.00

Total JO CARROLL ENERGY, INC. (397): 1,531.63

JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393)
050120 1 Invoice RECORDING FEE 05/01/2020 62.00 01.14.553.00

Total JO DAVIESS CTY CLERK/RECORDER (393): 62.00

JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116)
20-107 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/ALL 05/13/2020 40.00 01.21.471.15
20-108 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/TONY 05/13/2020 5.00 01.21.471.15
20-109 1 Invoice UNIFORMS/TIM 05/13/2020 5.00 01.21.471.15

Total JO DAVIESS CTY SHERIFF (116): 50.00

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690)
051520 1 Invoice EQUIPMENT 05/15/2020 596.47 17.52.514.00

Total JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL (119690): 596.47

KARNISH, GEOFF (120822)
050820 1 Invoice REFUND 05/08/2020 25.00 17.52.929.00

Total KARNISH, GEOFF (120822): 25.00

LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627)
9307557392 1 Invoice TOOLS 04/30/2020 80.35 01.41.653.00
9307562642 1 Invoice SUPPLIES 05/04/2020 511.59 17.52.652.00

Page 108 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     5
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

Total LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. (627): 591.94

LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218)
5916 1 Invoice MISC. MATERIALS 05/11/2020 74.89 01.41.614.04

Total LOUIE'S AGGREGATE COMPANY (1218): 74.89

LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127)
052020 1 Invoice CONSTRUCTION 05/20/2020 21,735.00 17.52.870.05

Total LOUIE'S TRENCHING SERVICE (127): 21,735.00

MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812)
4941520200 1 Invoice MONTHLY RATE FOR STA 05/01/2020 10.00 01.21.549.00

Total MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS - STARCOM (119812): 10.00

PETITGOUT, GEORGE (120625)
051120 1 Invoice UTILITY LOCATES 05/11/2020 75.00 01.41.549.00

Total PETITGOUT, GEORGE (120625): 75.00

RIVER CITY PAVING (56)
4300018133 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 04/30/2020 534.26 15.41.614.00
4300018207 1 Invoice COLD PATCH 05/15/2020 564.64 41.61.860.02

Total RIVER CITY PAVING (56): 1,098.90

SCHUMACHER, PAM (120820)
051420 1 Invoice REFUND 05/14/2020 25.00 17.52.929.00

Total SCHUMACHER, PAM (120820): 25.00

SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048)
20-005-263 1 Invoice ELECTRODES 05/12/2020 79.90 01.21.652.04

Total SECOND CHANCE CARDIAC SOLUTIONS (120048): 79.90

SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555)
593644 1 Invoice DECALS/KAYAK STORAG 04/30/2020 53.04 17.52.652.00

Total SIGNCRAFT SCREENPRINT, INC. (555): 53.04

STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230)
051520 1 Invoice FUEL 05/15/2020 334.56 20.25.655.00

Total STEPHENSON SERVICE CO. (119230): 334.56

TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908)
8766 1 Invoice PORTA POTTY FOR CON 05/15/2020 80.00 59.55.511.02

Total TRI-STATE PORTA POTTY, INC. (908): 80.00

Page 109 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     6
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost PO Number GL Account

US WATER (120719)
SI07486 1 Invoice SEWER CONTRACT 05/01/2020 29,036.67 52.43.515.01
SI07486 2 Invoice WATER CONTRACT 05/01/2020 29,036.68 51.42.515.00

Total US WATER (120719): 58,073.35

USA BLUE BOOK (120821)
227383 1 Invoice AUTOCLAVE 05/05/2020 5,229.24 52.43.929.00

Total USA BLUE BOOK (120821): 5,229.24

VERIZON WIRELESS (316)
9853506360 1 Invoice PAY & DISPLAY 05/15/2020 75.12 53.48.555.00
9853681706 1 Invoice VERIZON JET PACK FOR  05/15/2020 38.01 01.21.652.03
9853681707 1 Invoice IPADS/TRUCKS 05/15/2020 76.02 22.22.652.00

Total VERIZON WIRELESS (316): 189.15

WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258)
050920 1 Invoice OFFICE SUPPLIES 05/09/2020 327.08 01.21.651.00
050920 2 Invoice CLEANING SUPPLIES 05/09/2020 23.64 01.21.654.00
050920 3 Invoice MISC. SUPPLIES 05/09/2020 22.96 01.41.652.00

Total WAL-MART COMMUNITY (CC) (1258): 373.68

WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359)
051520 1 Invoice TURNER HALL JANITORI 05/15/2020 350.00 58.54.536.00

Total WHITE CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. (119359): 350.00

WHKS & CO. (119367)
41149 1 Invoice ENGINEERING 05/11/2020 827.75 41.61.860.05

Total WHKS & CO. (119367): 827.75

WORKSHOP, THE (120647)
47461 1 Invoice SR. VAN TRANSP. 04/30/2020 833.00 01.13.542.00

Total WORKSHOP, THE (120647): 833.00

ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212)
0180314 1 Invoice SWEEPER 05/06/2020 274.00 01.41.613.11

Total ZARNOTH BRUSH WORKS INC. (212): 274.00

Grand Totals: 78,692.42

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 3615414
Vendor number hash - split: 6614277
Total number of invoices: 61

Page 110 of 111



CITY OF GALENA Invoice Register Page:     7
Input Dates: 5/12/2020 - 5/31/2020 May 20, 2020  03:43PM

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Total number of transactions: 109

Terms Description Invoice Amount Net Invoice Amount

Open Terms 78,692.42 78,692.42

Grand Totals: 78,692.42 78,692.42

Page 111 of 111


	00.00 Agenda 05.26.20
	00.0203 Bridge Street Vacation
	Bostwick Street Vacation Memo to Council
	708 Bostwick Plat Exhibit A

	01.0204 Galena Cellars Liquor License
	02.0205 Galena Cellars Manager Liquor License
	03.0206 Minutes cc051120
	04.0207 Public Works Floor
	05.0208 Grant Park Driehaus Award Nomination
	06.0209 Phosphorus Removal
	07.0188 Police Janitorial Contract 2020
	051120b
	Police Janitorial Contract 2020

	08.0212 Downtown Open Spaces Proposal
	Downtown Reopening Plan 052120
	Outdoor Dining Request Letter GCT
	GDBA Letter of Support
	City Council Outdoor Dining Request (1)
	2020 Pedestrian Modification.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	09.0213 Outdoor Consumption Proposal
	kitty1
	MapOpenContainer

	10.0214 Chamber Letter to Governor
	11.0215 East Side Project Contract
	12.0216 Zoning Cal No 20A-02
	13.0217 Warrants 05.26.20



